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HREFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAIL
For the Year Ended 31 August 2018

The REAch2 Academy Trust includes the following academies, all of which have Local Governing Bodies {LGBs),
Transition Boards (TBs) or Interim Executive Boards (IEBs).
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Aerodrome Primary Academy - Goodwin Road, Croydon, CR{ 4EJ Headteacher: Zoe Foulsham

Beccles Primary Academy - Eflough Road, Beccles, Suffolk, NR34 7AB Headteacher: Heather Thorne
Brampton Primary Academy - Brampton Road, Bexleyheath, Kent, DA7 4SL Headteacher: Gemma Clarke
Burrsville infant Academy - Craigfield Avenue, Clacton-On-Sea, Essex, C015 Headteacher: Katie Siggery
Bushbury Lane Academy — Ripon Road, Wolverhampton, WV10 9TR Headteacher: Kate Benton

Camulos Academy - Whitmore Drive, Via Urbis Romanea, Colchester, CO4 6AL Headteacher: Daryl Power
Chapel End Junior Academy - Roberts Road, Walthamstow, London, E17 4LS Headteacher: Terence Sheen
Chigwell Primary Academy - 50 High Road, Chigwell, Essex 1G7 6DW Headteacher: Elaine Brook

Civitas Academy - 9 North Street Reading Berkshire RG1 7DA Headteacher: Salima Ducker

Concordia Academy - Westland Avenue, Hornchurch, Essex, RM11 3SD Headteacher: Raheel Akhtar
Copperfield Academy - Dover Road East, Gravesend, Kent DA11 ORB Headteacher: Simon Wood

Dorothy Barley Junior Academy - lvinghoe Road, Dagenham, Essex, RM8 2NB Headteacher: Cathy Leicester
Eastbrook Primary Academy - Manor Hall Road, Southwick, West Sussex BN42 4NF Headteacher: Julia Sherlack
Five Spires Academy - Cherry Orchard, Lichfield, Staffordshire WS14 9AN Headteacher: Helen Bye

Garden City Academy - Radburn Way, Letchworth Garden City, Hertfordshire, SG6 2JZ Headteacher: Jenny
Redgrove

Green Ridge Primary Academy — President Road, Aylesbury, Buckinghamshire HP18 0YA Headteacher: Aaron
Wanford

Gunton Primary Academy - Gainsborough Drive, Lowestoft, Suffolk, NR32 4LX Headteacher: Matthew Jordan
Heath Hayes Primary Academy - Wimblebury Road, Heath Hayes, Staffordshire, WS12 2EP Headteacher: Amy
Fidler

Kemsley Primary Academy - Coldharbour Lane, Kemsley, Kent ME10 2RP, United Kingdom Headteacher:
Cathryn Andrews . :
Kirby Primary Academy - Halstead Road, Kirby Cross, Essex, CO13 1LW Headteacher: Charlotte Booth-Rylett
Langtons Junior Academy - Westland Avenue, Hornchurch, Essex, RM11 38D Headteacher: Elaine Brook
Lawley Village Academy - Bryce Way, Lawley Village, Telford, TF4 28G Headteacher: Laura Hopley

Manor Park Primary Academy - Church Lane, Aston, Birmingham, B6 5UQ Headteacher: Mark Wilson
Martlesham Primary Academy - Black Tiles Lane, Martlesham, Woodbridge, Suffolk, IP12 455, Headteacher:
Emma Churchman

Miiton Court Primary Academy - Milton Regis, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 2EE Headteacher: Anthony Cosans
Moor Green Primary Academy - Moor Green Lane, Mosely, Birmingham, B13 8QB Headteacher: Nicola Fisher
Northfield St Nicholas Primary - St Margaret's Road, Lowestoft, Suffolk, NR32 4HN Headteacher: lain Owens
Norton Canes Primary Academy - School Road, Norton Canes, Staffordshire, WS11 98Q Headteacher: Geraldine
Croft

Qakfield Primary School - Oakfield Road, Rughy, Warwickshire, CV22 6AU Headteacher: Geraldine Croft
Pemberley Academy - Hester Mews, Hodings Rd, Harfow CM20 1NW Headteacher: Sarah Rees

Phoenix St. Peter Academy - Enstone Road, Lowestoft, Suffolk, NR33 ONE Headteacher: Nadia Paczuska
Purfieet Primary Academy - Tank Hill Rd, Purfieet on Thames, Essex, RM19 1TA Headteacher: Eugene Samuel
Racemeadow Primary Academy - Raicliffe Road, Atherstone, Warwickshire, CV9 1LT Headteacher: Joanna
Collinson »
Ranikhet Primary School - Spey Road, Tilehurst, Reading, Berkshire, RG30 4ED Headteacher: Salima Ducke
Riverside Academy - Newbold Road, Newbold-on-Avon, Warwickshire, CV21 1EH Headteacher: Rebecca Payne
Robert Fitzroy Academy - 80 Brampton Rd, Croydon, Greater London CR0 6JN Headteacher: Michelle Rosemond
Scientia Academy - Mona Road, Burton-upon-Trent, Staffordshire, DE13 OUF Headteacher: Laura Hands
Silkmore Primary Academy - Exeter St, Stafford ST17 4EG Headteacher: Sarah Barton

Sir Martin Frobisher Academy - Frobisher Drive, Jaywick, Clacton-on-Sea, Essex CO15 2QH Headteacher: Sarah
Barton '
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St Margaret’s Primary Academy - Church Road, Lowestoft, Suffolik, NR32 4JF Headteacher: Rebecca Clarke
St Marks CofE Primary Academy - Albert Road, South Norwood, London, SE25 4JD Headteacher: Kate Wilson
Summerside Primary Academy — Crossway, Finchley, London N12 0QU Headteacher: Nadine Lewis

The Globe Primary Academy - Irene Avenus, Lancing, West Sussex BN15 9NZ Headteacher: L.uisa Gould

The Palmer Academy - 70 Northumberland Ave, Whitley, Reading, RG2 7PP Headteacher: Salima Ducker

The Woodside Academy - Barrett Rd, London E17 3ND Headteacher: Shane Tewes

Tidemill Academy - 11 Giffin Street, Deptford, London, SE8 4RJ Headteacher: Lorraine Stewart

Tymbetwood Academy - Cerne Road, Gravesend, Kent DA12 4BN Headteacher: Matthew Clark

Unity Primary Academy -Hickory Avenue, Coichester, Essex CO4 3Q3J Headteacher: Sinead Harper

Veritas Academy - Weston Road, Stafford, Staffordshire ST18 0AD Headteacher: Angela Didier

Water Lane Primary Academy - Broadley Road, Harlow, Essex CM19 5RD Headteacher: Sarah Rees

White Meadows Primary Academy - Whitelea Road, Littlehampton, Wick, West Sussex BN17 7JL Headteacher:
Luisa Gould

Wilshere Dacre Junior Academy - Fishponds Road, Hitchin, Hertfordshire SG5 1NS Headteacher: Sarah Smith

Schools joining the Trust from 1 September 2618
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Henhurst Ridge Primary Academy - Henhurst Ridge, Branston, Burton an Trent, DE13 9SZ Headteacher:
Charlotte Hopkins

Newhall Primary Academy - Roundhouse Way, Harlow, CM17 9SF Headteacher: Debbie Gayler

The Limes Primary Academy - Lime Avenue, Oulton, Lowestoft, Suffolk, NR32 3BQ Headteacher: Kate Cracknell

Schools leaving the Trust as at 31-August 2018

>,
"0

Castle Hill Academy - transferred to Platanos Trust 1 September 2017




TRUSTEES' REPORT
For the Year Ended 31 August 2018

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable
company forthe year/period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018. The annualreport serves the purpose of both a
trustees' report and a directors' report undercompany law.

The Academy Trust operated 55 primary academies acrossthe UK, Its academies have a combined pupil capacity of
19,455 and aroll of 16,838 at the October 2018 Census date.

Structure, Governance and Management Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s memorandum and
articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The trustees of REAch2 Academy Trust
are also the directors of the charitable company forthe purpose of company law. The charitable company operates as
REAch2 Academy Trust.

Details of the trustees who served during the year and to the date these accounts are approved are included in the
Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members’ Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets ofthe charitable company; in the event of it
being wound up while they are a rnember, or within one year afterthey cease to be a member, such amounts as may be
required, not exceeding£10forthe debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trust Indemnities
Allacademies within the Academy Trust have opted into the academies risk protection arrangement (RPA)

hitps://www.gov.uk/quidance/academies-tisk-protection-atrangement-rpa

RPA cover applies to the central infrastructure of the Trust as well as the individual academies, The RPA
provides indemnity for Trustees to a maximum aggregated value of £10 million during any one membership year.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The management of the Trust is the responsibility of the Trustees who are appointed and co-optedunderthe terms of the
articles of association and funding agreement. The recruitment and succession planning of Trustees must match
REAch2 Academy Trust’s vision forthe next five years. The skills profile of the Board must reflect the governance needs
ofthe Trust.

The following skills categories set out the broad range of skills,knowledge or prior experiences that is expected to be held
acrosstheBoard:
s Leadership and Policy
Education Performance and Curriculum
Finance
Risk and Audit
Constitutional Governance
Strategic Partnerships, External Relationships and Public Reiationships
Engagements with nternal takeholders
Human Resources
Estates and Propert
Health, afety and afeguarding
Change anagement

The REAch2 Board requires its Trustees to have a broad range of skills and previous experiences in orderto be effective in
governance. The Board carries out a skills audit of Trustess annually to inform the recruitment process, using the
categories above to inform decision-making. The steps towards recruiting and appointing a new trustee are set out below:



TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)

1. Create and distribute a Trustee person specification

A person specification is developed, setting out the ‘Roles and Responsibilities’ and desired skilis / experience required of
anew REAch2 Trustee —whether appointed by Members ar co-opted by Trustees.

The person specification is advertised through ‘Academy Ambassadors’ to create an open and fransparent
competition fortrustee appointments. Additional information, such as the five-year strategy, may be provided to interested
candidates,

2 Shortlisting and Interview

At least one Member will review applications and shortlist to a preferred set of candidates.

These shortlisted candidates will then be interviewed by at least one Member and one existing Trustee. An
independentinterview panel membermay also participatein the interview where this is considered appropriate. This
interview will determine whether the candidates are suitable, against the selection criteria and any skills gaps of the
current Board. Candidates considered suitable for further consideration will then be invited to shadow a Trust Board
meeting or relevant sub-committee meeting.

In cases of co-opted Trustees, a Member is not required to participatein this process, and the shortlisting and interviews
may be carried out by Trustees.

3 Final Selection

Prior to a formal decision on appointmentto the Board, any remaining candidates may also attend a Trustboard, or sub-
committee mesting in an observer capacity to assess averall suitability to work well as patit of the existing team of
Trustees

4. Pecision and appointment to REAch2 Board

Forappointed Trustees, the finalratification of a potential appointment is provided by Members by ordinary resolution.
Once this has been approved successful candidates can commence the REAch2 Trusteeinduction process.

In cases of co-opted Trustees, a vote of the Trust Boardwill determine final ratificétion, afterwhich successful candidates
can commence the REAch2 Trustee induction process.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

During the period under review, the trustees were in attendance at six trust board meetings. The training and induction
provided for new trustees’ will depend on theirexperience. An induction meeting is undertaken to provide training on
charity and educational, legal and financial matters. This series of meetings also sets out the strategy and objectives of
the Trust along with the values and vision. All new trustees are given a tour of at least one ofthe academies in the group,
and a chance to meet with staff and students. Ali trustees are provided with copies of the Trust policies, procedures,
minutes, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to fulfil their role as trustees and directors ofthe Trust.
On-going governance reviews and training programs are encouraged for alltrustees to ensure they continue to make an
effective contribution and are keeping up to date with changes in legislation.

Organisational Structure
The Trust Board delegate authority to three key groups in order to ensure the effective leadership and governance of

the Academy Trust. The three kay groups are:

. Executive isadership and management team (the Executive Team);
. Regional Boards;
. L.ocal Governing Bodies.

The relationship between the Trust Board and the Executive Team, the Regional Boards and the Local Governing
Bodies is characterised as a partnership to realise a common vision and a common purpose. In the case of the
Regional Boards and the Local Governing Bodies the relationship between the three tiers of governance is also based
on the principles of:

. no duplication of governance.

. governance should be as close as possible to the point of impadct of decision-making.
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The Terms of Reference and the Roles and Functions Overview provides clarity as to who the decision makers are for
different levels of decisions. Effectiveness of both management and governance is supported through clarity over who
holds the decision-making responsibility and who supports and advises the decision makers.

The Trust Board remains uitimately responsible for the Academy Trust and the conduct of the Academies. The operation
of the various elements of governance are crucial to the success of the group. However, there will be circumstances
{more the exception than the norm) where the Trust Board might need to intervene and, for example, withdraw delegated
authority for a particular element of governance.

In such circumstances, the Trust Board, along with the Executive Team, would work closely with any Academies
concerned and those involved in their governance who would be expected to promptly implement any advice or
recommendations made by the Trust Board and the Executive Team. The Trust Board reserves the right to review or
remove any power or responsibility which it has delegated, in particular, in circumstances where serious concerns in the
running of an Academy {or Academies) are identified, including where;

. there are concerns about financial matters;

. insufficient progress is being made against educational targets (including where intervention by the Secretary of
State is being considered or carried out);

. there has been a breakdown in the way the Academy is managed or governed; or

. the safety of pupils or staff is threatened, including a breakdown of discipline.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

When considering and setting salary levels across the trust a clear set of principles were identified to ensure
transparency. In orderto ensure fairness and equity throughout the organisation it was proposed that job roles should be
handed relative to the average newly qualified teachers starting salary. The highest paid role will not exceed ten times that of
a newly qualified teacher. In the academic year 2017 / 18 the averageannual salary of a newly qualified teacher across the
trust was £25,564.

An annual benchmarking exercise takes place across other Muiti-Academy Trusts in particular covering the more
seniorroles which is reviewed by the remuneration committee. Any recommendation from the remuneration
committee is taken to the trust board for final sign off,

Trade union facility time

1. Relevant Union Officials: Comments: Percentage of total
No. of employees who were relevant union 4 FTE workforce (4/2606.5)*100 = 0.15346
officials during the relevant period 01/04/17 to
31/03/18
2. Percentage of time spent on facility
time
Percentage of time No of
Employees
0% 2
1-50% 2 2 TU rep spent less than 50% of their
time on paid TU facility time
51-99%
100%
3. Petcentage of pay bill spent on
facilities time
Total cost of facilities time £25,733.91 Includes costs of TU facility time and

TU pooling costs paid to LA’s etc.
Total Pay bill | £74,698,929.13 | Total R2 pay bill
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Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time 0.03445%

calcufated
4. Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a >0% 2 TU reps spent 78 + 19.5 hours
percentage of total paid facilities time hours {paid hours) on TU Facility Time.
calculated as; Nil paid on TU Facilities

Total hours spent on paid TU activities by TU
official during pericd/total paid facility time
hours x 100%

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations
REAch2 Academy Trust has strong collaborative links with Reach South Academy Trust. This relationship is defined
through aMemorandum of Understanding that both Trusts approved.

A memberof Reach South Academy Trust, Peter Little, is also a member of REAch2 Academy Trust. A Trustee of Reach
South Academy is the CEO of REAch?2.

While the Trusts are separate and independent legal entities they share a commeon brand and set of values with a
declared intent to work in collaboration tothe mutualbenefit of the MATSs. Itis this approach to MAT operations and
governance that defines the REACH brand. The Memorandum of Understanding sets out how the Trusts would
positively cooperate and how that cooperation would be governed.

The strength of the partnership across both Trusts will enable a Reach education, Whilst REAch2was incorporated as a
primary only Trust, Reach South are sponsors of primary and secondary education enabling a Reach education across
the UK,

Springfield Primary School, a LA maintained school managed by an Interim Executive Board, has been working under
a Memorandum of Understanding effective from 15t January 2018.

The school is subject to an academy order with REAch2 identified as the academy sponsor. During the academic year
a number of secondment arrangements have been included to support the school including back office support and
rapid school improvement.

n February 2014, a trading company was established, REAch2 Inspiration Ltd. REAch2 Inspiration Ltd is wholly owned by
REAch2 academy Trust. REAch2 Inspiration Ltd fully complies with the provision of services “at cost” principle, as any
surpluses generated by the company would belong to the Multi Academy Trust. The purpose for establishing REAch2
Inspiration Ltd is to allow a supply of the highest quality 'in house’ services, at a low cost to our academies, ensuring
budgets are optimised to benefit the education of children within REAch2 Academies and hence providing bestvalue.

Objects and Activities

Objects and Aims
The principle object and activity of the charitable company is to advance educational benefit by providing a broad and
balanced education for primary pupils of all abilities in the UK.

In setting out the trust objectives, considerationhas been given tothe Charities Commission guidance inrespect of public
benefit when reviewing the aims and ohjectives of academies {see ‘Public Benefit' section below)

In accordance with the articles of assaciation the academy has adopted a “Scheme of Government” approved by the
Secretary of State for Education. The Scheme of Government is part of the wider 'Master Funding Agreement’ between the
Companyand the Secretary of State and 'SupplementalFunding Agreements’ foreach Academy. The scheme of
government specifies, amongst other things, that the academies will be at the heart of their communities promating
community cohesion and sharing facilities; the basis for admitting students to the Academies, thatthe curriculum should
be broad and balanced; there willbe an emphasis on the needs ofthe individualpupils including pupils with special
educational needs (SEN).
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Objectives, Strategies and Activities

Our mission is to run “Great Schools”. Some of our schools can already be described in this way, but we want every
school in our family to aspire to this and for this to become the reality for every single one of our pupils.

To do this, over the coming five years everything we do will be driven by the following goals:

» Truly Exceptional Performance
» Distinctive Contribution
» Enduring impact

Truly Exceptional Petformance
To become an exemplary provider of primary education, creating and upholding our "above and beyond” performance
standards.

As a system leader to contribute to government policy and lead on sector improvement.

Distinctive Contribution
All schools have an educational offer defined by aspiration, enrichment and opportunity that provides social, personal
and cultural capital.

In REAch2 schools children develop distinctive characteristics which prepare them for a brighter future.

Enduring Impact
We are the destination of choice as the UK's hest provider of primary education

By becoming a dynamic part of the social fabric, we drive the transformation of socially disadvantaged communities

The Trust is an efficient and effective organisation with fit for purpose systems and processes that deliver on Truly
Exceptional Performance and BDistinctive Contribution

Public Benefit
in setting the objectives, the Trustees confirm that they have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance
on the public benefit published by the Charity Commission in exercising

This has been considered when reviewing the Academy Trusts' aims and objfectives and in planning any future activities.

The main public benefit delivered by the trust is the provision of high quality education toits pupils, which will be evidenced
from feedback from externalassessments.
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Strateqgic Report

Achievements and Performance

Early Years and Key Stage 1 Performance and Achievements

Academy Date Academy Type | 2818 GLD 2618Y1 2018 Y2 2018 Y2 2018 Y2 2018 Y2

Academy Phenics Phonics Reading Writing Maths
Joined (Cumulative) {Expected (Expected (Expected
RIIAch2 Standard) Standard} Standard)

Aerodrome Primary Academy 01/12/2012 | Converter 64% 87% 91% 7% 70% 66%
Beccles Primary Academy 0L/ON2015 | Sponsored T2% 4% 4% 66% 57% 1%
Brampton Primary Academy (1/07/2014 | Converter T4% §81% 91% 74% 71% 78%
Burssville infant Academy 01/12/2013 § Sponsored 2% 81% 90% 0% 50% T1%
Bushbury Lane Academy 01/05/2017 § Sponsored 62% 73% 85% 48% 41% 55%
Camulos Academy 01/09/2016 | New Provision 78% 88% 93% 81% 4% 81%
Chigwell Primary Academy 01/09/20%5 | Sponsored 88% 86% 100% 83% 83% 79%
Civilas Academy 01/09/2015 | New Provision 68% 79% 82% 68% 66% 73%
Concordia Academy 01/09/20t6 | Free School 80% 96% NA NA NA NA
Copperfield Academy O1/1E/2013 | Sponsored 3% 59% 90% 48% 45% 65%
Eastbrock Primary Academy 01/09/2013 | Sponsored 87% 85% 92% 68% 61% 71%
Five Spires Academy 01/09/2015 | New Provision 83% 90% 97% 87% 81% 84%
Garden City Academy 01/08/2012 | Sponsored 4% 94% 96% T4% 65% 4%
Green Ridge Primary Academy | 01/09/2017 | New Provision 62% 1% 96% T0% T0% 78%
Gunton Primary Academy 01/10/2615 | Sponsored 4% 82% 95% 80% 1% 80%
Heath Hayes Academy 01/01/2014 | Sponsored 69% 67% 100% 68% 68% 80%
Kemsley Primary Academy 01/04/2013 | Sponsored 3% 80% 93% 0% 73% 93%
Kirby Primary Academy 01/10/2013 | Sponsored 68% 68% 7% 59% 59% 69%
Lawley Village Academy 01/09/2015 | New Provision 75% 4% 93% 77% 80% 3%
Manor Park Primary Academy 01/02/2016 | Sponsored 74% 82% 91% 65% 55% 62%
Martlesham Primary Academy 01/04/2016 | Sponsored 71% 75% 94% 88% 82% 94%
Milton Court Primary Academy | 01/04/2013 | Sponsored 61% 79% 79% 56% 52% 52%
Moaor Green Primary 01/05/2015 | Sponsored 76% 86% 89% TT% 2% 79%
Northfield St Nicholas Primary 0140772015 | Sponsored 68% 84% 98% 73% 64% T1%
Academy

Norton Canes Primary Academy | 01/01/2014 | Sponsored 61% 72% 94% 67% 58% %
Qakfield Primary Academy 01/11/2012 | Sponsored 7% 81% 96% 70% 70% 79%
Pemberley Academy 01/09/2015 | Sponsored 830% 93% 93% 7%% 79% 6%
Phoenix St Peler Academy 01/08/2015 | Sponsored 68% 73% 82% 57% 50% 57%
Purfleet Primary Academy 01/04/2013 | Sponscred 74% 94% 100% 84% 79% 4%
Racemeadow Primary Academy | 01/§1/2013 | Sponsored 71% §5% 92% 80% T2% To%
Ranikchet Academy 01/£1/2015 | Sponsored % % 100% 76% 67% 76%
Riverside Academy 01/£1/2012 | Sponsored 3% 80% 7% 3% 73% T3%
Scientia Academy 01/09/2013 | New Provision 73% 92% 97% 83% 3% 87%
Silkmore Primary Academy 01/07/2015 | Sponsored 78% 8% 94% 6% 82% 82%
Sig Martin Frobisher Academy 01/09/2016 | Sponsored 33% 6% 90% 72% - 6% 7%
Springhill Academy 01/0172014 | Sponsored 67% 86% 100% 6% 7% 76%
Sprites Pritnary Academy 01/07/2015 | Sponsored 78% 64% 92% 59% 63% 0%
St Margaret's Primary Academy | 01/07/2015 | Sponsoted 80% 84% 9% 71% 65% 69%
St. Mark's CofE Primary 01/09/20%4 | Sponsored 65% 81% 100% 8% &l% %
Academy

Summerside Primary Academy | 01/09/2017 | New Provision 63% 86% 98% 2% 67% 80%
The Globe Primmary Academy 01/11/20i4 | Sponsored T4% 83% 98% 77% 72% 78%
The Minerva Academy 01/09/2014 | Free School 80% 60% 75% 83% 83% 100%
The Palmer Academy 01/09/2013 | Sponsored 81% T1% 81% 5% 1% 82%
The Robert Fitzroy Academy 01/09/2012 | Sponsored 67% 81% 9% T1% 68% 73%
'The Woodside Primary 01/12/20£2 | Sponsored T0% 84% 91% 7% T2% 80%
Academy

Tidemili Academy 01/09/2013 | Converter 63% 0% 92% 71% 66% %
Tymberwood Academy 01/02/2014 | Sponsored 73% 75% 93% % 1% Ti%
Unity Primary Academy 01/09/20t4 1 Sponsored 68% 80% 88% 69% 51% 62%
Veritas Primary Academy 01/09/2015 { New Provision 4% 85% 81% 82% T3% 82%
Water Lane Primary Academy 01/09/2014 | Sponsored % 80% 0% 77% 7% 80%
White Meadows Primary 01/04/20t4 | Converter 57% 83% 92% 72% 57% 4%
Academy
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REACHZ2 ACADEMY TRUST

Key Stage 2 Performance and Achievements

Expected Standavd % Progress Scores
Date
~ Academy 2018 2018 2018 2018 Reading ; Writing Maths
Joined Academy RWM KS2 BS2 KS2 Progress | Progress | Progress
Academy REAch2 Type combined | Reading | Writing Maths Score Score Score

Aerodrome Primary Academy 01/12/2012 | Converter 59% 67% 2% W% -0.9 0.1 0.5
Beccles Primary Academy (1/O12015 | Sponsored 52% 61% 67% 9% 0.1 0.7 04
Brampton Primary Academy 01/07/2014 | Converer 71% 78% 95% 81% -1.5 07 2.4
Bushbury Lane Academy 01/05/20617 | Sponsored 43% 53% 71% 53% -2.6 1.5 -2.7
Chapel End Junior Academy 01/04/2013 | Sponsered 62% 73% 80% 71% -(0.5 0 -1.2
Chigwell Primary Academy 01/09/2015 | Sponsored 60% 71% 91% 74% =27 0.8 -4
Copperfield Academy 01/11/2013 | Sponsored 30% 45% 51% 36% -4.8 -6.6 -7.2
Darothy Barley Junior Academy 01/06/2014 | Sponsored 54% 62% 4% T2% 2.8 -0.9 2.2
Eastbrook Primary Academy 01/09/2013 | Sponsored 19% 88% 82% 86% I3 0.1 2
Garden City Academy 01/09/2012 | Sponsored 81% 1% 81% 95% 4.8 -0.2 5.2
Gunton Primary Academy 01/10/2015 | Sponsored 64% 73% 78% T6% -0.3 0.3 -0.3
Heath Hayes Academy §1/61/2014 | Sponsored 0% 85% 70% 80% 0.3 -2.9 1.4
Kemsley Primary Academy 01/64/2013 | Sponsored 1% §1% 4% 81% 1.9 -0.3 0.3
Kirby Primary Academy 01/10/2013 | Sponsored 67% 80% 3% 1% 0.5 -3 0.3
Langtons Junior Academy 01/04/2013 § Sponsored 7% 84% 81% 76% 0.8 1.4 -1
Mangr Park Primary School 01/02/2016 ¢ Sponsored 49% 60% T4% 53% 2.2 32 2.8
Martlesham Primary Academy 01/04/2016 § Sponsoyed 50% 7% %% 71% 12 14 1.5
Milton Court Primary Academy 01/04/2013 | Sponsored 52% 58% 61% 53% -3.7 -1 -3.5
Minerva Academy 01/09/2014 | Sponsored 0% 0% 66% 33%

Moor Green Primary 01/09/2015 | Sponsored 66% T0% 82% 78% 0.8 19 1.6
Northfteld St Nicholas Primary Academy | 08/07/20i5 [ Sponsored 32% 51% 54% 53% -1.5 0.2 -1.8
Norton Canes Primary Academy 01/01720t4 | Sponsored 47% 58% 67% 60% -2.5 -1.7 -2.1
Oakfield Primary Scheol 01/11/2012 | Sponsored 75% 84% 75% 78% 1.3 0.9 2.9
Phoenix St Peler Academy 01/08/2015 | Sponsored 50% 56% 67% 56% -2.9 -0.5 -1.2
Purfleet Primary Academy 01/04/2013 | Sponsored 51% 58% 85% 60% -i.9 2.5 -0.5
Racetneadow Primary Academy 01/11/2013 | Sponsored 69% 8% 3% 81% 3.1 1.3 3.5
Ranikhet Academy 0171172015 | Sponsored 25% 40% 48% 52% 0.2 1.9 1.1
Riverside Academy 01/11/2012 | Sponsored 87% 93% 87% 93% 2.8 -0.3 4.5
Scientia Academy 01/09/2013 | New Provision 67% 73% 80% 73% -1.3 -0.4 1.1
Silkmore Primary Academy 01/07/2015 | Sponsored 75% 75% T5% 75% 4.2 5.8 3.6
Sir Martin Frobisher Academy 01/09/2016 | Sponsored 31% 40% §7% 37% -4.0 -0.7 -5.1
Springhill Academy 01/01/2014 | Sponsored 1% 81% 86% 6% -1.3 0.4 -0.1
Sprites Primary Academy 01/07%2015 | Sponsored 27% 46% 56% 44% -4.8 -4.3 -5.7
St Margaret's Primary Academy 01/07/2015 | Sponsored 45% 55% 60% 66% -1.8 -1.9 -2.3
St. Mark's CofE Primary School (1/409/2014 | Sponsored 71% 86% T6% 76% 1.3 1.4 1.3
Summerside Primary Academy (1492017 | New Provision 70% 7% T9% 82% 2.7 3.6 3.2
The Globe Primary Academy 170172014 | Sponsored 55% 74% T2% 63% 0.5 0.7 -2.4
‘The Palier Academy G1/9/2013 | Sponsored 57% 62% 2% T0% -2 1.5 0.1
‘The Woodside Primary Academy 01/12/2012 [ Sponsored 4% 81% 871% 8% 0.5 2.7 2
Tidemill Academy 01/09/2013 | Converter 5% 80% 82% 86% 34 2.9 6.1
Tymberwood Academy 01/02/2014 [ Sponsored 66% 80% 81% 5% 0.2 0.1 1.2
Unity Primary Academy 01/09/2014 | Sponsored 68% 81% 79% 77% 1.9 -1.7 2.2
Veritas Primary Academy 01/09/2015 | New Provision 75% 86% 86% 89% 1.2 0.5 0
Water Lane Primary Academy 01/09/2014 | Sponsored 65% 91% T0% 78% 09 0.2 -0.7
White Mcadows Primary Academy 01/04/2014 | Converter 61% 71% T5% 77% 1.3 1.2 1.9
Wilshere-Dacre Junior Academy 01/03/2014 | Sponsored 3% 85% 83% 83% 0.4 -0.8 -0.8

*The floor standard is the minimum standard for pupil attainment and / or progress that the government expects

schools to meet, No school will be confirmed as being below the floor until December 2018 when schools’

performance tables are published. In 2018, a school will he above the floor if:
« atleast 65% of pupils meet the expected standard in English reading, English writing and mathematics;

» or the school achieves sufficient progress scares in all three subjects. At least -5 in English reading, -5 in
mathematics and -7 in English writing.

10




REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)

REAch2 Summary
The percentage of pupils achieving the expected standard at the end of Key Stage 2 continues to improve and rose by 7
percentage points from 53% in 2017 to 60% in 2018

Three schools may he classified as below fioor when the performance tables are published in December. These are
Sprites, Sir Martin Frobisher and Copperfield.

AtKey Stage 1, 81% of Year 1 pupils achieved the 32-point score standard in phonics across the Trust compared to 79% in
2017.

Cumulatively, 9% of Year 2 pupils achieved the 32-point score standard in phonics across the Trust comparedto 91% in
2017.

Atthe end of KeyStage 1, results in Reading, Writing and Maths allimproved from 2017 to 2018 (Reading from 71% in 2017
to 73% in 2018; Wiiting from 65% in 2017 to 67% in 2018 and Maths from 72% in 2017 to 75% in 2018).

In the Early Years there was also an improving picture with 70% of EYFS REAch2 achieving a good level of development in
2018 compared to 68%in 2017.

At the end of the financial year 69% of academies inspected by Ofsted since joining the Trust are judged to be 'Good or
Outstanding’ from 17% prior to conversion.

Achievements and Performance

Key Performance Indicators Strategic Report
Strategic Report

Aerodrome Primary Academy opened as a convertor academy in December 2012,

Its last inspection, in June 2016, judged overall effectiveness to be Good. Qutcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS pupils t
o be making good progress from their starting points. Pupils in KS1 achieved above the national average, including in Y
1 phonics which improved considerably from 2017 to 2018 (71% to  7%). Pupils in KS2 achieved results slightly befow
the national average. KS2 progress is broadly average in all three subjects. The quality of teaching is good overalt. Atten
dance is slightly elow the natfonal average though has improved since the previous year where it was markedly below.

Beccles Primary Academy opened as a sponsocred academy in July 2015.

Its last inspection, prior to joining the trust, judged overall effectiveness to he Requires Improvement. its mspecﬂon in
June 2018 also judged the school to Require Improvement, The school was judged to not be making improvement
rapidly enough and not taking consistent action to reverse the legacy of underachievement, though some positive
indications were noted such as improvements fo Y8 Outcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS pupils to be attaining
broadly in line with national average. In Phonics and KS1, outcomes were below national. Outcomes for KS2 showed
attainment to be well below national but i has improved since the praviols year (36% RWM combined in 2017 and 52%
in 2018). The quality of teaching is weak overall, with much teaching inadequate or requiring improvement, However, in
EYFS and Y6 the quality of teaching is good. Attendance is in-line with national.

Brampton Primary Academy opened as a sponsared academy in July 2014,

At the last inspection in Spring 2017, the school was placed into "special measures”; outcomes in 2017 showed pupils’
attainment and progress to be well below the national average. These have improved significantly in all key stages in
2018.Three HMI monitoring visits took place in 2017-18 and were very positive, indicating that leaders were taking effect
ive action and that the quality of teaching is improving.By the end of the academic year, all inadequate teaching has
been eliminated and the proportion of ‘good or betier teaching has increased. Several new teachers are due to start

the school in September 2018,  Attendance is above national average and currently stands at 96.3% It is expected
that the school will be removed from ‘special measures’ in the 2018-19 academic year.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)

Burrsville Infant Academy onened as a sponsored academy in December 2013,

Its most recent inspection in November 2016, judged overall effectiveness to be Good Quicomes in July 2018 showed
EYFS pupils to be in line with national average and K51 pupils to be attaining below the national average. The quality of
teaching is good and improving, with 100% of teaching judged Good or better. Attendance at the end of 2018 is

slightly below national at 95%.

Bushbury Lane Academy opened as a sponsored academy in March 2017,

Its previous inspection, prior to joining the Trust, judged overall effectiveness to be Requires Improvement. An MTR in
May 2018 judged the school as Requires Improvement. Below natienal average for KS1 reading, writing and maths and
also EYFS GL.D and Year 1 phonics. The school is significantly below (except writing which is below) national average
for all subjects in KS2 including combined. Bottom 25% for reading and maths progress and tap 25% for writing
progress, Outcomes have improved dramatically from the previous year. Senior leaders are fully aware that the quality
of teaching has historically been very variable and has not been strong enough over time to enable pupils to reach

the standards they are capable of. A large number of staffing changes has also led to some vety variable rates of
progress. Nevertheless, now there is now a full complement of staff in post and

the quality of teaching is quickly improving. Attendance is just below national the national average at 95.4%.

Camulos Academy opened as a new provision in September 2016.

It has yet to be inspected as part of the Trust. Qutcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS and KS1 pupils to be attaining
above the national level. The school is expected to be judged good in Summer 2019, Attendance is presently above
nationai average.

Chapel End Junior Academy opened as a sponsored academy in April 2013,

Its last inspection, in March 2015, judged overall effectiveness to be Good. KS2 sufcomes were in line with national for
combined and above national in Writing. The quality of teaching is judged to be Good overall. Attendance is above the
national average.

Chigwell Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in September 2015.

In its last inspection, before joining the trust, overall effectiveness was judged as inadequate. However, the school was
judged as Good in all areas in 2017/2018. Outcomes in July 2018 showed outcomes in EYFS and K51 pupils to be
attaining above the national average. K52 outcomes showed pupils to be attaining just below national in reading,
above in writing and broadly in line with national in Maths. The KS2 combined figure was just below national.
Attendance is in line with the national average,

Civitas Academy opened as a new provision in September 2015. The school received an Ofsted inspection in
September 2018 and was judged as Good in all areas. EYFS results in 2018 are in line with average, but are just
below in reading, writing and maths at K81, Attendance is below the national average but it was recognised by Ofsted
that the school was doing all it could to address this.

Concordia Academy opened as a free school in September 2016. it is yet to be inspected as part of the Trust.
Its EYFS results in July 2018 were in-line with the national average. Phonics at Y1 are above national averages. he
quality of teaching is good across the school and attendance is above the national average.

Copperfield Academy opened as a sponsored academy in November 2013.

Its most recent inspection in September 2016, judged overall effectiveness to be Requires Improvement. There was
instability in leadership arrangements in 2017-18, which lead to a decline in standards. A new substantive
Headteacher took up post in May 2017, however the school continued to decline and actions taken to secure
improvements were not effective due to ineffective leadership. The school was robustly monitored and supported by
the RD and regional team and whilst a DFE visit in February 2018 found that Trust actions were well judged and fit for
purpose, they were not having enough impact due to poor leadership at school level. The headteacher departed the
school in Summer 2018 and the school continues to go through a peried of considerable turbulence. Internal
evaluations of the school judge the school to be inadequate. Outcomes in July 2018 were broadly at national average in
EYFS, with pupils having made typically good progress from starting points. However, outcomes were significantiy
below national averages in phonics, KS1 and KS2. Progress measures were significantly low and in the bottom 5%
nationally.
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The quality of teaching is consistently Inadequate or Requires Improvement across the school. KS2 progress is weak
and well below the national average. Attendance is well below the national average.An experienced Executive
Headteacher has now been appointed from September 2018 with the remit of securing rapid recovery and ensuring
significant improvement to the quality of education provided by the school. The school is part of the Trust's School
Transformation Process to support improvement in all areas.

Dorothy Barley Junior Academy opened as a Sponsored academy in June 2014, Its last inspection in May 2017,
judged overall effectiveness to be Good. Outcomes for KS2 in July 2018 were below the national average in all
subjects, but show a three-year trend of improvement. There are six new teachers to the school and therefore the
quality of teaching is 75% Good or better. Attendance is broadly in line with the national average.

Eastbrook Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in September 2013.

Its most recent inspection in July 2015 judged overall effectiveness to be Outstanding. Qutcomes in July 2018 showed
EYFS to be slightly below the national average. Outcomes for phonics in Y1 were above the national average having
improved since the previous year. KS1 resuits are below the national average, particularly in Writing for pupils achieving b
oth the ‘expected’ standard and 'greater depth’. In KS2 attainment was above the national average in all subjects.

KS2 progress is broadly in line with the national average. The quality of teaching is self-evaiuated by the school to be outst
anding, though consideration may need to be given in 2018-19 to the impact of teaching on outcomes at KS1, including for
rmore able pupils. Attendance is similar to 2017 and remains below the national average.

Fives Spires Academy opened as a new provision in September 2015.

A recent inspection in May 2018 judged overall effectiveness to be Good. Above national average in all areas (EYFS GLD,
Year 1 phonics, KS1 reading, writing and maths). Across the school, teaching is effective and maost pupils make good
progress. Attendance is above national at 96.6%.

Garden City Academy opened as a sponsored academy in September 2012, Its inspection in June 20186, judged
overall effectiveness to be Requires Improvement, however in October, the school was judged as good overall — the

first time the school has been judged in Ofsted history. Outcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS pupils to be broadly in

line with the national average and KS1 pupils to be attaining just below national. Outcomes for KS2 were significantly
above national at 77% Combined and progress was positive in reading and maths. Attendance is just below the national
average.

Gunton Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in October 2015.

Its inspection in Summer 2018 judged the school to be ‘good’. Qutcomes in July 2018 showed outcomes in EYFS and
Phonics to be broadly in line with national. In K&1, outcomes were above national for pupils achieving the 'expected’ leve!
(though not for Greater Depth . Outcomes for KS2 for RWM Combined improved significantly (from 51% in 2017 to 64% in
2018) and are now in line with national. The quality of teaching is good overall. Attendance has declined markedly and is
well below the national average. An attendance audit will take place in Autumn 2018 to support the school with

ensuring systems and approaches are fully robust,

Heath Hayes Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy on 1 January 2014,

Its recent inspection, in September 2016, judged overall effectiveness to be Good. Above national average for KS1 maths
and KS2 combined, reading and maths. Below national average for EYFS GLD, Year 1 Phonics, KS1 reading and writing
and KS2 writing and GPS. Middle 20% for reading progress, bottom 25% for writing progress and top 40% for maths
progress. With a high staff turnover, teaching is good with some requires improvement however, the senior leadership
team have a full complement of staff in September 2018 to secure consistently good teaching. Attendance is just above nat
ional average at 96.1%.

Henhurst Ridge Primary Academy opened as a new provision in September 2018.
Kemsley Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in April 2013,
Its most recent inspection in February 2015 judged overall effectiveness to be Good. Outcomes in July 2018 for EYFS

were in line with the national average. For KS1 attainment was above national in all subjects, particularly reading and
maths which was well above average.
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KS2 progress is broadly in line with the national average in Writing and Maths and above in Reading. The quality of
teaching is judged by the school to be good.The school has become increasingly stable ‘ollowing the Headteachers

substantive return to the school in Summer 2017, following the ending of the executive head arrangement with Milton
Court. Attendance remains above the national average.

Kirby Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in October 2013,

lts most recent inspection in September 2016 judged overall effectiveness to be Requires Improvement. Outcomes in
July 2018 showed EYFS pupil attainment to be slightly below the national average. KS1 pupils were also attaining
below national. Outcomaes for KS2 were above national in all areas except Writing which was below.The quality of
teaching judged as Good or better is 38% and is a high priority focus for the school, with 86% new staff,

Attendance is in-line with the national average at 96%.

Langtons Junior Academy opened as a sponsored academy in April 2013. A one-day inspection took place in
November 2018 and was judged to be . Attainment outcomes in July 2018 for KS2 were above the national
average in Reading, Writing, Maths and combined. The quality of teaching is improving and is currently 90% Good or
better. Attendance is in line with the national average.

Lawley Village Academy opened as a new provision in September 2015.

Its most recent inspection in May 2018 judged overall effectiveness to be Good. Above national average for EYFS GLD,
Year 1 phanics and KS1 reading and writing. The school is below national average for KS1 maths. Teaching is good,
lessons are well-structured and pupils continue fo make good progress. Attendance is above national average at 96.8%.

Manor Park Primary opened as a sponsored academy in February 2016,

Its most recent inspection, prior to joining the trust, judged the overall effectiveness to be Inadequate. A MTR in
September 2017 judged overall effectiveness to be Requiring Improvement. In 2018 EYFS GLD was above national
average. The school is below national average for KS1 reading, writing and maths, Year 1 phonics and all subjects in
KS2 including combined. Top 25% for reading, writing and maths progress. The quality of teaching continues to improve
with 80% now gaod or better. Aftendance has improved and is just below national at 95.6%, persistent absence has
improved and is now at 9%.

Martlesham Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in April 2016.

lts most recent inspection prior to joining the trust judged overall effectiveness to be Requires Improvement. Taking into
account the potential for large variations due to cohort size, outcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS, Y1 Phonics and KS1
pupil attainment to be broadly in line with or better than the national average. Outcomes for KS2 attainment were below
national, though this is affected unduly by the small cohort size with two pupils having narrowly missed the required
pass mark {(which would have brought the school in line with the national average). Progress is in line with the national
average. The quality of teaching was self-evaluated by the school as Requires Improvement at the end of the summer
term and is a focus for the school to improve prior to the next inspection. A 1-day review will take place on 5% October
to ensure that sufficient action is being taken to rapidly improve teaching so that it is good. Attendance is above the
national average.

Mitton Court Academy opened as a sponsored academy in April 2013,

At its last inspection in March 2017, its overall effectiveness was judged as Requires Improvement., However,
outcomes in 2017 were exceptionally poor and well below national averages, indicating that the school would likely
have received an inadeguate judgment if it had been inspected following the publication of those outcomes.The school
remains critical with regard to the need to secure rapid improvement. A hew Headteacher took up post in November
2018 and, as identified by both a Trust Review in February 2018 and an HMI Monitoring visit in July 2018, has had a
positive impact on securing improvements at the school. By the end of summer term 2018, inadequate teaching had
been eliminated, with teachers having either made the necessary improvements or choosing to depart the school.

In 2018, this impact is starting to be seen in outcomes fo Qutcomes in Phonics have improved considerably
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{from 33% in 2017 to 79% in 2018}; and outcomes in RWM in KS2 have also shown marked improvements (from 30%
in 2017 to 52% in 2018). Outcomes in EYFS and KS1 remain below the national average, but the quality of teaching

in these year groups has now been strengthened for the 2018-19 academic year. KS2 progress is significantly below
the national average. {though in-year progress for the Y& cohort this year was strong). Attendance emains a focus
for the school and is below the national average, though significant reductions have been achieved in the proportion of
pupils who are persistently absent. The school has very robust systems for monitoring and improving attendance and
the improvements to date were described by the HMI monitoring visit as a “success story”.

Minerva Academy joined the trust as a free school in September 2014, its last inspection, in January 2016 judged
overall effectiveness as Good. Following a consultation, due to the declining pupil roll, the school officially closed on
201 July 2018 with pupils moving to neighbouring schools with capacity.

Moor Green Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in September 2015,

Its last inspection in October 2016 judged overall effectiveness to be Requires Improvement.

Above national average in EYFS GLD and Year 1 phonics. Above national average in ali areas in KS1. Above national
average in K82 combined, writing and maths and in line with national average in GPS. Below national average in KS2
reading. Top 40% for reading and maths progress and top 25% for writing progress. The quality of teaching is at least
good with a vast majority of lessons judged as outstanding. Attendance and persistent absence is improving across
the school however attendance is still below the national average at 84.2%, this remains a focus for the school.

Newhall Primary Academy opened as a new provision in September 2018.

Northfield St. Nicholas Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy on 1 July 2015. Its recent inspection in
summer 2018 judged overall effectiveness to be Requires Improvement. Outcomes in July 2017 showed EYFS pupils
to be attaining slightly below the national average, with KS1 pupils also attaining below the national average. Qutcomes
for KS2 pupil attainment were significantly below the national average. Attendance is currently below the national
average. A new, experienced Headteacher has now taken over the schoo!.

Norton Canes Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy on 1 January 2014,

Its most recent inspection in November 2016 judged overall effectiveness to be Requires Improvement. The school
received a very positive report following a DfE visit from Vai McGregor in December 2017, However, the school is
below national average for EYFS GLD and K81 (Year 1 phonics and KS1 reading, writing and maths) and all areas in
KS2. Bottom 25% for reading, writing and maths progress. Some of the teaching is being judged good and new staff
have continued to improve at the school but there is still much to do. Attendance is below national average at 94.7%
and is a key focus for the school. '

Oakfield Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in November 2012,

lts most recent inspection in June 2016 judged overall effectiveness to be Good. Above national average for EYFS
GLD. In line with national average in KS1 writing. Above national average for KS1 maths. In K82, above national
average in all areas, except writing. The school is below national average for Year 1 phonics, KS1 reading and K82
writing. Top 40% for reading and writing progress and top 25% for maths progress.The quality of teaching remains
strong with 100% good or better. Altendance is below national average at 95.4%.

Pemberley Academy opened as a new school in September 2015. It was inspected in 2018 and was judged to be
good in all areas. lts EYFS results in July 2018 were above the national average. Outcomes in July 2018 for KS1 were
above national in Reading, Writing and Maths. The quality of teaching is judged to be Good overall. Attendance is just
above the national average.

Phoenix St. Peter Academy opened as a sponsored academy in August 2015. its recent inspection, summer
2018, judged overall effectiveness as Requires Improvement. Outcomes in Julg 2018 showed EYFS pupils to be
aftaining below the national average. KS1 pupils’ attainment was significantly below national in Reading, Writing and

Maths. Outcomes for KS2 pupil attainment were significantly below national in all subjects, The Headteacher, who
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was absent due to spinal injuries for most of 2017/2018 has now returned. Attendance is currently just below the
national average.

Purfleet Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in April 2013. In October 2016 the academy was
inspected and judged overall effectiveness to be Good. Outcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS and KS1 pupils to be
attaining significantly above the national average. Qutcomes for K82 pupil attainment were below national in Reading,
Maths and Combined, but above in writing. The Headteacher retired at the end of the 2017/2018 academic year.

A new Headteacher joined the school in October 2018. The quality of teaching was judged at 72% being Good or
better. Attendance is improving, but remains below national.

Racemeadow Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in November 2013.

In June 2017 the academy was inspected and its overall effectiveness was judged to be Good.In line with national
average in EYFS GLD and KS1 expected maths. Above national average in Year 1 phanics. Above national

average in KS1 expected reading and writing. In KS2, above national average in all areas except GPS and writing which
are below. Top 25% for reading and maths progress and top 40% for writing progress. The quality of teaching is very
strong and continuing to improve. 100% of teaching is good or better. Attendance is below national average at 94.9%
and is a key focus for the school.

Ranikhet Primary School opened as a sponsored academy in November 2015. In its last inspection, prior to joining
the trust overall effectiveness was judged to be Inadequate, Outcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS pupils to be
attaining below the national average and KS1 pupils fo be attaining above in reading and broadly in line with national
in writing and maths. The Head of School and Y6 teacher left their posts in April 2018. Outcomes at Y6 were
disappointing with all areas significantly below national averages. Attendance continues to be a challenge and was
significantly below national at the end of the academic year.

Riverside Academy

opened as a sponsored academy in November 2012. In its recent inspection, in March 2018 the overall effectiveness
was judged to be Good. Above national average in EYFS GLD and in KS1 writing expected The school is below
national average for Year 1 phonics and KS1 reading and maths. In KS2, above national average in all areas. Top 5%
for maths progress, top 25% for reading progress and middle 20% for writing progress. The quality of teaching
outstanding and outcomes for every year group are strong. Attendance is above national average at 96.4%.

Robert Fitzroy Academy opened as a new academy in September 2012.

In was inspected in July 2014 and July 2018. Overall effectiveness was judged to be Good. OQutcomes in July 2018
were broadly similar to the national average in EYFS, phonics and KS1. The school will have its first Y6 cohort n
2018-18 and hased on the most recent assessment data, these pupils are on track to achieve outcomes broadly n line
with, or better than, the national average. This will constitute good overall progress from starting points. Attendance has
improved markedly for the past 3 years and is now similar to the national average.

Scientia Primary Academy opened as a hew academy in September 2013,

its previous inspection in June 2015 judged overall effectiveness to be Good. Above national average in EYFS GLD
and Year 1 phonics, Above national average in all areas in KS1 expected. Above national average in KS2 combined
and writing. Below national average for K82 reading, maths and GPS. Bottom 40% for reading and writing progress
and top 40% for maths. The quality of teaching is consistently good throughout the school with 20% graded as
outstanding. Attendance is well above national average at 86.7%.

Silkmore Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in July 2015.

Its recent inspection in May 2018 judged overall effectiveness to be Outstanding.

Above national average in EYFS GLD. In line with national average in KS1 reading and above national average in KS1
writing and maths, Above national average in KS2 combined and in line with national average in KS2 reading. Below
national average for KS2 writing, maths and GPS. The schoal is also below national average for Year 1 phonics. Top
5% for reading and writing progress and top 25% for maths progress. The recent Ofsted inspection judged teaching to
be outstanding. All teaching is at least good with the majority outstanding. Attendance is below national average

at 95.0% and is a focus for the school.
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Sir Martin Frobisher opened as a sponsored academy in September 2016.

In its previous inspection, prior to joining the trust, overall effectiveness was judged as Requires Improvement,
Cutcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS and KS2 pupils to be attaining significantly below the national level. Outcomes
in KS1 are recorded as broadly in-line with national. The quality of teaching judged to be Good or better is 30%.
Attendance is significantly below the national average at 91%

Springhill Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in January 2014,

Its last inspection in November 2016 judged overall effectiveness to be Requires Improvement, Below national average in
EYFS GLD, but above national for Year 1 phonics. In line with national average in KS1 reading and maths and above
national average in KS1 writing. Above national average in K82 combined, writing and reading and in line with national
average in KS2maths. Below national average for KS2 and GPS.. Bottom 40% for reading progress and middle 20% for
writing and maths progress. The quality of teaching continues to improve. 75% is now good or better. In September 2018
new staffing will ensure 100% of teaching is good or better. Attendance is slightly below the national average at 95.8%

Sprites Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in July 2015.

In its inspection in Summer 2018, the school was judged to be inadequate and placed into a category as a school having
‘serious weaknesses'. Outcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS pupils to be attaining above the national average. n Phonics
and KS1, outcomes were well below the national average. Outcomes for KS2 pupil attainment were exceptionally poor
and well below the national average. The quality of teaching is inadequate. Progress from KS1 to KS2 is significantly low
Attendance is just below the national average.

St Margaret’s Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in July 2015. In its recent inspection, summer 2018,
overall effectiveness was judged as Requires Improvement, with Leadership, PDBW and EYFS judged as good.
Outcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS pupils to be attaining above the national average. In KS1 pupils were slightiy
below the national average for attainment in Reading and Maths, and broadly in-line with national for Writing. Outcomes
for KS2 pupil attainment were well below the national average. Attendance was below the national average at 95%.

St Marl’s Academy opened as a sponsored academy in September 2014,

Its previous inspection, in May 2017, judged overall effectiveness to be Good. Outcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS to be
slightly below the national average, though these pupils had made strong progress from low starting points. KS1 pupils
attained broadly in line with the national average in Reading and Maths, though below in Writing. Phonics in Y1 showed
considerable improvement {from 64% in 2017 {o 81% in 2018). KS2 pupil attainment in 2018 for RWM Combined showed
impressive improvement from the previous years’ results (40% in 2017 to 71% in 2018). KS2 progress overall broadly

in line with the national average. The quality of teaching across the school is typically good. Attendance is above the
national average.

The Globe Academy opened as a sponsored academy in November 2014.

The school was inspected in September 2017 and overall effectiveness was judged as Good. Qutcomes in July 2018 in
EYFS, Phonics and KS1 are all similar to, or better than, the national average. Qutcomes for KS2 pupils' attainment were
below the national average in RWM combined, which was disappointing. In Reading, attainment improved markedly

the previous year and in Writing it remained broadly similar. However, in Maths it declined, which had a detrimental
impact on the overall RWM combined figure. KS2 progress remains below the national average, though improved from the
previous year. The quality of teaching is judged by the school to be good. Attendance is below national but has improved
when compared to the previous year.

The Limes Primary Academy cpened as a new provision in September 2018,
The Paimer Academy opened as a sponsored academy in September 2013. lts most recent inspection in June 2017
judged overall effectiveness to be Good. Outcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS pupils to be attaining above the national

average and KS1 pupils to be attaining in-line or above the national average. Outcomes for KS2 pupil attainment were
helow national across all subjects. Attendance continues to be a focus for the school, but is presently just below national,
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The Woodside Academy opened as a sponsored academy in December 2012. In its most recent inspection, in July
2016, judged overall effectiveness to be Outstanding. Outcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS pupils to be in line with the
national average and KS1 pupils to be attaining above the national average in Reading, Writing and Maths, Outcomes for
KS2 pupil attainment were significantly above national in all subjects. 85% of teachers are judged to be Good or better,
Attendance has improved and is just below the national average,

Tidemill Academy opened as a converter academy in September 2013.

lts previous inspection in 2008, prior to joining the trust, judged overall effectiveness to be Outstanding.

In 2018, outcomes in EYFS were below the national average, though internal data indicates that pupils had made strong
progress from low starting points. Oufcomes in phonics in Y1 and Y2 were very strong and well above the national
average. Outcomes in KS1 were slightly below the national average. they were broadly in line with the national average,
Outcomes in KS2 were strong and well above the national average. KS2 progress in 2017 is well above the national
average and in the top 25% nationally {top 5% for Maths) The school judges the quality of teaching to be at least Good,
with a high proportion of outstanding teaching across the school. Attendance is above the national average,

Tymberwood Academy opened as a sponsored academy in February 2014.

In its inspection, in February 2017, the schools’ overall effectiveness was judged as Good. Outcomes in July 2018
showed EYFS and KS1 pupils to be attaining broadly in line with national averages. Attainment for KS2 pupils' attainment
was slightly above national averages overall, with particularly impressive mprovements having been achieved in Reading
{from 66% in 2017 to 80% in 2018). KS2 progress is broadly in line with the national average. The quality of teaching

is judged to be consistently Good or better Atftendance is persistently below the national average — although

procedures for improving attendance were praised during the inspection. The low attendance is in part attributable to the
exceptionally high proportion of the school population (around 11%) from the GRT community {with the schools’
relationships and practices in relation to this community having been highly praised).

Unity Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in September 2014 as an amalgamation of the Infant and
Junior schools. In its most recent inspection, in July 2017, its overall effectiveness was judged to be Good. Outcomes

in July 2018 showed EYFS pupils to be attaining slightly below national and K81 pupils to be attaining below the national
level. Outcomes for KS2 pupil attainment were above the national average. The quality of teaching has improved with 85%
of teaching judged to be good or better. Attendance is below national at 85%.

Veritas Academy: opened as a new provision in September 2015

Its inspection in April 2018 judged overall effectiveness to be Good. Above national average in EYFS GLD and Year 1
phonics. Above national average in alt areas of KS1 expected. Above national average in all areas of KS2 expected. Top
40% for reading progress and middle 20% for writing and maths progress. The quality of teaching is at least good

with the vast majority of lessons been graded as outstanding. Attendance is above national average at 96.3%.

Water Lane Primary Academy opened as a sponsored academy in September 2014.

In its most recent inspection, in June 2017, overall effectiveness was judged as Good. Qutcomes in July 2018 showed
EYFS and KS1 pupils to be attaining broadly in line with or above the national averages. Outcomes for KS2 pupil
attainment were above national averages in RWM combined, Reading and Maths, but below in Wiiting. The quality of
teaching has improved with 100% being judged as Good. Attendance is at the national average.

White Meadows Academy opened as a convertor academy in April 2014,

Its previous inspection in January 2017 overall effectiveness was judged as Good. Outcomes in July 2018 showed EYFS
and KS1 pupils to be attaining below the national average — particularly in GLD and Y2 Wiiting. These areas have been
identified as needing marked improvement in the next academic year. Outcomes for Phonics were in line with the national
average. Outcomes for KS2 RWM Combined showed significant improvement from 49% in 2017 to 1% in 2018.

K82 progress is slightly above the national average.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)

Wilshere Dacre Junior Academy opened as a sponsored academy in March 2014. In its most recent inspection, in
September 2016, overall effectiveness was judged as Requires Improvement. Outcomes in July 2018 for KS2 pupil
attainment were above national averages in Reading, Writing, Maths and Combined. 77% of teachers are judged to be
Good or better. Attendance has improved and is now in line with the national average at 96%.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence forthe fareseeable future. Forthis reason, it continues to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financial Review
During the period, ESFAWLA grants totalled to £95,545k (2017; £93,897k). Other income included within the restricted
funds totalled to £2,047k (2018: £1,807k). The restricted fund expenditure totalled to £101,689k (2017: £99,041k).

Most ofthe Academy Trust'sincome is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency(ESFA}in the formof
recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to a particulara purpose. The grants received from the ESFA during the
12-month period ended 31 August 2018 adthe assaciated expenditure are shown as restricted fundsin the Statement of
Financial Activities.

The Academy also received grants for fixed assets from the ESFA. In accordance with the Charities Statement of
Recommended Practice, "Accounting for Reporting by Charities” (SORP 2015), such grants are shown in the Statement
of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund halance is reduced by
annual depreciation charges cverthe expected usefullife ofthe assets concarned.

Under the Charities SORP, it is necessary to charge projected deficits on the Local Government Pension Scheme, which
is provided to support staff, to a restricted fund. This results in reducing reserves shown in the total funds ofthe Academy. It
should be noted that this does not present the Academy with any current liguidity problem. The employer contributions
continue to increase forthe foreseeable. Overall the academy has a healthy balance sheet and cash flow and will be
using reserves to maintain the current assets and also to invest back into the school in the form of additional
resources and facilities both in the long term and the short term in conjunction with the school development plan and
school aims.

The Trust has appointed a Chief Operating Officer (COQ), who is known as the Finance Director.

The Chief Operating Officer has been reviewing the financial policies, processes and controls with an ongoing review of
systems used in supporting financial management. All schools are required to produced monthly financial reports that are
reviewed at all levels of Governance. These are compared against the budget submitted to the ESFA and reforecasts
undertaken when required. Any school that is presenting financial challenges are escalated to the Chief Operating
Officerwho, along with Trustees and the Regional Team will work on a five-year strategic plan to ensure the schools
financial viability.

On an annual basis the finance committee receive and review fonger term financial models (up to 5years)to plan and
organise resources most effectively to fulfilthe strategic aims ofthe Trust. -

The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the associated serviced to the pupils of the academies.

The deficits in the LocalGovernment Pension Schemes (LGPS) are recognised on the balance sheet in accordance with
the provision of FRS102
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Reserves Policy

Reserves brought over by schools joining the Trust are accounted for in the school’s financial statements. A schoolls can
apply to access these funds for exceptional expenditure in year once it has met its commitments and covered its other
planned expenditure. More specifically reserves are income which becomes available to the Trust and is to be spent atthe
Trustees’ discretion in furtherance of any of the academy’s object (sometimes referred to as ‘'general  purpose’ income)
but which is not yet spent, committed or designated (i.e. is free).

The level of reserves held takes into account the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match them with
commitments, including future capital projects, and the nature of reserves. The Trustees wilikeep this level of reserves
under review and aim to build and maintain the reserves level whilst in keeping with the principle object of the academy.

During the academic year a Reserves Policy was implemented across all schools to poal centrally the cash balances
of all academies into a central deposit account with the accounting of reserves remaining at school level. A number of
consuftations took place prior to implementation. The policy will be reviewed during the 2018-2019 academic year fo
ensure operational effectiveness and procedural accuracy.

Total reserves at the end of the period amounted to £217,143k. This balance includes unrestrictive funds (free reserves) of
£2,960k which is considerad appropriate forthe academy trust, and restricted funds excluding pension and fixed assets of
£1,564k. .

Within the reserves policy users should note that, because of accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS),
the academy recognises a significant pension fund deficit totalling £27,322k. This deficitis included in restricted funds. This
does not lead to an immediate liability for this amount. Similarly, if there was a pension surplus included in the restricted
funds this would not create animmediately realisable asset that can be released straightaway and expended for the specific
purpose ofthat fund.

Users should note that a surplus or deficit position of the pension scheme would generally result in a cash flow effect of the
academy trust in the form of an increase or decrease in employers’ pension contributions overa period of years.

The academy trust thus takes this fact into account when reviewing current business plans and budgets, and ascertaining
how the pension costs might affect budgets inthe future. Onthe basis thatincreased pension contributions should generally
be metfrom the academy trusts budgeted annual income, whilst the deficit may not be eliminated there shouldbe no actual
cash flow deficit onthe fund or direct impact on the unrestricted reserves of the academy trust due to the recognition ofthe
deficit.

investment Policy
At the end of the academic year a Trust investment policy was not in place. This remains a key work stream for the Finance
Committee during the 2018 — 2019 academic year.

During the 2017 — 2018 academic year the process of pooling reserves, enabling collective funds to be held in one central
account, was implemented. This was the first phase of delivering an investment policy to ensure the effective management of
cash.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Companies Act 2006 s417(3b} requires disclosure of the principle risks and uncentainties facing a company. The
Academy is exposed to a number of financial risks including credit, cashflow and liquidity risks. Given the Academy’s
exposure to financial instruments being limited, the exposure principally relates to bank balances, cash and trade
creditors, with limited trade (and other) debtors. The academy’s system of internal controls ensures risk is minimal in these
areas.

The academies Risk Registers and the Trusts' approach to risk is currently under review. Changes to the risk strategy will .
take effect during the Spring Term 2019 to ensure that risk remains a focus area and key priority for the Trust.

Where appropriate, systems or procedures have been established to mitigate the risks each academy faces. Internalcontrol
risks are minimised by the implementation of procedures for authorisation of alltransactions and projects. Trustees have
assessed the major risks to which the Academy trust is exposed, in particular those relating to the specific teaching,
provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Academy, and its finances.

20



REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST
TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)

Trustees have implemented a number of systemsto assessrisks that each school faces, especially in the operational areas
(e.g.in relation toteaching, health and safety, bullying and school trips) and in relation to the control of finances. They have
introduced systems, including operational procedures (e.g. velting of new staff and visitors, supervision of school grounds)
and internal financial controls {see below) in order to minimise risk.

A material risk for the academy trust in relation to the defined pension scheme has been mitigated as pariiamenthas agreed
at the request of the Secretary of State for Education to guarantee that in the event of an academy closure outstanding
LGPS pension scheme liabilities would be met by the Department of Education. This guarantee came into force on 18
July 2013.

The academy trust has an. effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail in the
Governance Statement,

It should also be noted that procedures are in place to ensure compliance with health and safety of staff, visitors and its
pupils.

Fundraising Practices
The Trust expects schools to carry out effective fundraising activities, including raising money through voluntary PTA
events,

In order to assist schools with income generation the Trust engaged with a commercial partner during the year to focus
on securing commercial partnerships, and to identify potential grants and assist with applications. The Trust and
individual schools retain full control of these processes, which are subject to ongoing scrutiny and review.

During 2018/18 the Trust expects to be successful in more grant applications than previously and bring in commercial
sponsorship to assist with the full implementation of the 11 before 11 strategy.

Plans for Future Periods
The number of academies within the Trust is not expected fo rise with the exception of the Free Schools programme and the
schools already in the pipeline.

Educational intervention and support capacity has increased during the academic year, through the recruitment of Deputy
Regional Directors who will provide strength to the Regional Director, and the multi-disciplinary, regional teams.
Additional support has also been addressed at the operational level, to further assist the trust strategy to strengthen the
long term sustainability.

Key central appointments has seen a focus on Health and safety, Procurement and Governance.,
A centralised procurement strategyto realise cost savings and effectiveness across the trusts will also be implemented.

A strategy, known internally as REAY6 has been implemented to narrow the gap between the highest and lowest
performing academies across the trust. This will achieve our ambition that all schools meet “the above and beyond”
performance standards.

A further strategy has been implemented to commence from the start of the new academic year, known as Transformation
Schools'. A School Transformation Plan is a systemic approach to supporting the most critical schools in the Trust which
ensures that:

1. There is a ‘mechanism’ for more rapid decision making around the allocation of essential resources and funds
which reflects the urgency for improvement and mitigating immediate risk.

2. Roles and responsibilities are defined centrally at Executive level as weli as at regional and school level. In this
regard, it recognises the shared responsibility within the Trust for supporting those schools identified at risk.

3. The school is requiring a more intensive lavel of support which could include increased visits, more frequent
time spent supporting the school and fixed timescales on reselving challenging issues.

21




REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)

The Trust has set out five Key Performance Indicators which it will be working towards during the academic year

1.

2,

3.

4,

5,

The end of year outcomes across all key stages are at or above the national average.

84% of REAch2 schools inspected overall are judged to be good or better by Ofsted.

REAch2 continues to be financially sustainable by ending the year in line with budgeted outcome,
The wellbeing of staff and children is effectively supported.

Organisational efficiency is improved through codification of systems and processes in each service area.

These will be measured and reported against in the next academic year.

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others.

The Academy Trust and its Trustees did not act as a custodian trustee during the current or previous period.
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Auditor
Insofar as the trustees are aware:
) theré is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware

+ thetrustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establishthat the auditoris aware of that information,

Trustees’ report, incarparating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company
directors, on 11 December 2018 and sighed on the hoards behalfby:

AT

Jeremy King

Chair of Trustees
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
For the Year Ended 31 August 2018

Scope of Responsibility

As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that REAch2 Academy Trust has an effective and
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-fo-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controfs conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the reguirements and responsibiliies assigned toitin the Funding Agreementbetween REAch2 Academy
Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible forreporting tothe board of trustees any material
weakness or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the Statement
of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met sixtimes during the year. Attendance during the year
at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended QOut of a possible
Jeremy King - Chair 6 6
Gavin Robert — Vice Chair 8 B8
Clare Walsh* 1 1
Peter Little* 1 1
Colin Powell 1 6
Michael Peters 3 6
Victoria Pigott 3 8
Dr Louise Askew 6 6
Tony Gilbey 6 6
Clive Rackingham 5 6
Chris Kane 5 6
Raiph Kugler+ 4 4
Teresa Beach+ 4 4
Wade Newmark+ 4 4
Jonathan Lewis+ 1 1
Sir Steve Lancashire (ex-officio) 8 3]

{*/+ denotes trustees who joined or left during the reporting year)

During the last reporting period, trustees undertook a self-evaluation review of governance. The findings of this review
led to the establishment of a new Governance Steering Group within the Trust. The ongoing review of governance within
the Trust has resulted in:

» an improvement in communications across all tiers of governance, including the creation of “Link Trustees” to
ensure effective communication between our regional and Trust level tiers of governance and termly
communications between the Chairs of the Trust Board Committees and Chairs of the Regional Boards.

* areview of the current terms of reference for each Trust Board Committee to ensure governance is effective
across the Trust. ‘
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the inclusion of standing agenda items for all Trust Board meetings i.e. Safeguarding and Health and Safety,
which were formerly addressed at Committee level.

the identification of the need for the role of Company Secretary

the formation of an independent remuneration committee (formerly part of the Trust Board Finance Committee)
which has met twice during the financial year.

the formation of an Estates and Free Schools Committee to address the pipeline of free schools and the current
Estates deficit, inherited through sponsored academy conversions.

The Academy Trust has six subcommitiees reporting into the Board of Trustees:

Finance sub-commitiee

Risk and Audit sub-committee

Human resources sub-committee

Educational Standards & Performance sub-committee
Estates and Free School Committee

Remuneration sub-committee

Each sub-committee comprises at least three trustees, one of whom is the committee chair. Each committee meets at least
termiy and presents a report of key findings and actions takento the Board of Trustees.

The finance committee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. Its duties include:

* & & » »

to develop afinancial strategy forthe Academy Trust and consider policies, procedures or plans required to realise
such strategy,

to receive financial monitoring reports from individual academies,

to considerindividual academy budget proposals forauthorisation,

to consider exceptional requests for expenditure,

to oversee significant investment and capital financing decisions

to oversee the financial position of the trust.

No significant issues to note wers dealt with during the year.

Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows;

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Antony Gilbey (Chair)

Jonathan Lewis+

Jeremy King

Wade Newmark+

£ % N I O [ o T IS
Bl Ww |2 0 A

Sk Steve Lancashire (ex-officio)

(+ denotes trustees who joined the committee during the reporting year)

The Risk and Audit committee, a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. lts purpose is to:

Monitor the integrity of the financial statements

Review internal financial control and reviewing the academy’s internal contro! and risk management
systems ’ _

to review the action and implementation of risk management policy across the Academy Trust
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+ Making recommendations to the governing body in relation to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the external auditor and approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the auditor
+ Reviewing the auditor's independence and objectivity
No significant issues to hote were dealt with during the year.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Meetings Outofa
Trustee attended possible
Clive Rockingham (Chair) 3 3
Jeremy King 3 3
Gavin Robert 2 3
Teresa Beach+ 2 2
Victoria Pigott* 0 1
Sir Steve Lancashire (ex- 3 3
officio)

{* denotes trustees who left the committee during the reporting year; + denaotes trustees who joined the committee
during the reporting year)

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officerthe Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value inthe use
of public resources. The accounting officer understands that the value for money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayers' resources received.

The accounting officer considered how the academy frust's usea of its resources has provided good value formoney during
each academic year, and reports fo the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of
benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for
money during the yearby:

s Supporting close working refationship within clusters of schools to enable proactive support and chalflenge
across our academies

« Commencing and reviewing the procurement of services across our academies to achieve better quality,
economies of scale and consistentoutcomes across the academies.

e Educationaloutcomes have improved by ongoing support from the region including receiving
regular data reviews and moderation of the academies self-evaluation and school development plans, These
are reviewed and challenged at all levels of Governanceacross the Trust.

s Ongoing review both external and internal of ouracademies in the form of Moderated Trust Review (MTR) and
Review of School Effectiveness (ROSE) ensures the expected outcome of the academies during Ofsted are in
line with Trust expectations. Intervention is delivered where required.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process dasighedto identify and prioritise the risks
tothe achievementiofthe academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate thelikelihood of thoserisks being realised
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
internal control has been in place in REAch2 Academy Trustforthe period 1 September2017to 31 August 2018and up to
the date of approval ofthe annual report and financial statements.
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Capacity to Handle Risks

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposedtogetherwith the operating, financial
and compliance confrols that have been implemented to mitigate thoserisks. The board of trustees is ofthe view that there
is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy trust’s significant risks that has been
in place for the period 1 September 201710 31 August 2018and up to the date of approval of the annualreport and financial
statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the beard of trustees.

The Risk and Control Eramework

The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular,
it includes:

+ Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees

+ Regularreviews by the finance committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts

and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programs

Setting targets to measure financial and cther performance

Clearly defined purchasing {assets purchase orcapital investment) guidelines

Delegation of authority and segregation of duties

identification and management of risks

The board of trustees have considered the need for 4 specific internal audit function and has decided:
« toappointMichelle Roe as internal Auditor.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on
the academy trust's financial systems. in particular, the checks carried outin the current period included:
tasting of payroll systems

testing ofpurchase systems

testing of control accounts / bank reconciliations

testing of compliance with the scheme of delegation and internal controls

On a termly basis, Michelle Roe the internal auditor reports to the board of trustees, through the audit committee on the
operation of the system of control and on the discharge ofthe board of trustees' financialresponsibilities.

The board can confirm that the internal auditor has delivered their schedule of work as planned. During the current

and previous period, there were no material control issues and thus no remedial action was required to be taken.

Review of Effectiveness
As accounting officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system ofinternal control.
During the yearin question the review has been informed by,

The work of the internal auditor

The work of the external auditor

The financial management and governance self-assessment process

The wark of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenanceofthe internal control framewark.

The accounting officerhas been advised of the implications of the results of their review ofthe system of internal control by
the Risk and Audit committee and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.
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Approved by orderofthe members of the board of trustees an 11 December 2018 and signed on its behalfby

Signed: Signed;
Jeremy King Sir Steve Lancashire
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
For the Year Ended 31 August 2018

As Accounting Officer of Reach2 Academy Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust
Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding received by the Academy Trust, under the funding agreement
in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had
due regard to the requirements of the Academies FinancialHandbook 2017.

I confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregularorimproper use of
funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of the funding agreement
under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academies FinancialHandbook 2017.

| confirm that no instances of materialirregularity and impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discoveredio

date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and
ESFA.

yrwa

Sir Steve Lancashire
Accounting Officer

11 December 2018
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE TRUSTEES' ANNUAL
REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The trustees (who are the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with Academies Accounts Direction published
by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United, Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Undercompany law the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give atrue
and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure forthat period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2017
to 2018;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK accounting standards have heen followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business

Thetrustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explainthe
charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enablethem to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible forensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and
other contrals, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also
responsible forensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied forthe purposes intended.

The trustees are respensible forthe maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financialinformation included on the
charitable company's website. Legisiation inthe United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in otherjurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 11 December 2018 and signed on its behalf.

L

Jeremy King
Chair of Trustees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITCR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of REAch2 Academy Trust (“the charitabie company”) for the year ended 31
August 2018 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities including Income and Expenditure Account, the
Balance Sheet, and the Statement of Cash Flows, and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2018, and of the
charitable company's incoming resources and application of resources, including the charitable company's income and
expenditure, for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland;

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) and the Academies Accounts Direction
2017 to 2018 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationat Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the
charitable company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concem basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis
for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements. We have nothing to report
in these respects.

Other information

The trustees are rasponsible for the other information, which comprises the Reference and Administrative Details, the
Trustees’ Report and Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of
assurance conclusion therean.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial statements
audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit
knowledge. Based solely on that work:

. we have not identified material misstatements in the other information;

. in our opinion the information given in the Trustees' Report, which constitutes the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Repott for the financial year, is consistent with the financial statements; and

. in our opinion that report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2008.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not baen kept by the charitable company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

) the charitable company’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT (continued)

. certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,
We have nothing to report in these respects.

Trustees’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 2 |, the Trustees (who are the Directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for: the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the charitable
company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend fo liquidate the charitable company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’'s repori. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs {(UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the bhasis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's
members thase matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and its
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Clare Partridge

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behaif of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

1 Sovereign Square

Sovereign Street

Leeds

.S4 1DA

Z | December 2018
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to REAch2 Academy Trust and the
Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 26 June 2017 and further fo the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018, we have
carrfed out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received
by during the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament
and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to REAch2 Academy Trust {the Academy Trust) and ESFA in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter. Cur work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust and ESFA those
matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpase. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of the Academy Trust’s funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 30 October 2014 and the Academies Financial Handhook, extant from 1
September 2017, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them,

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period
1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by ESFA,
We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in
a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a lest basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust’s income and expenditure,

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion included:

. Documenting the framework of authorities which govern the activities of the Academy Trust;

. Reviewing the evidence supporting the representations included in the Accounting Officer's statement on
regularity, propriety and compliance with the framework of authorities;

. Undertaking a risk assessment based on our understanding of the general control environment and any
weaknesses in internal controls identified by our audit of the financial statements;

. Reviewing the output from the self-assessment questionnaires completed by afl staff with Budget Holder
responsibility and the Head Teacher on behalf of the Governing Body;

. Testing compliance with delegated authorities for a sample of material transactions;

. Testing transactions with connected parties to determine whether the Trust has complied with the ‘at cost’

requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2017,
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT’S ASSURANCE REPORT {continued)

. Confirming through enquiry and sample testing that the Trust has complied with its procurement policies and
that these policies comply with delegated authorities; and
. Reviewing any evidence of impropriety resulting from our work and determining whather it was significant

enough to be referred to in our regularity report.

This list is not exhaustive and we performed additional procedures designed to provide us with sufficient apprapriate
evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity consistent with the requirements of Part 9 of the Academies
Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018,

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Clare Partridge

Reporting Accountant

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants

1 Sovereign Square

Sovereign Street

Leeds

.54 1DA

‘Z} December 2018
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REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Urnresfricted  Restricted  Restricted Total Total
General Fixed 2018 2017
Funds Funds Asset Funds
Note £'000 £'0600 £'000 £:000 £'000
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 2 - - 3,000 3,000 4,303
Transfar from Local Authority 2 - 15 14,203 15,018 12,896
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educationai operations 3 1,518 94,592 - 96,110 92,717
- Teaching Schools 31 91 - 91
Other trading activities 4 1,125 - - 1,125 1,212
Investment income 5 33 24 - 57 47
Total income 2,676 94,822 17,903 115,401 111,175
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
. Trust's educational operations 6,7 2,678 101,689 18,577 122,942 109,880
- Teaching Scheols 31 - 76 - 76 -
. Inherited defined benefit pension liabifity 6,7 " 665 “ 565 926
. Assets transferred out of the Trust 6,7 (1,017) 9,620 8,603 9,291
Total resources expended 6,7 2,676 101,313 28,187 132,186 120,697
Net income / (expenditure) - {6,491) {10,204) {186,785} {(8,922)
hefore transters
Transfers
Transfers belween funds ‘ 18 - {1,239) 1,239 - -
Net income / (expenditure) before other
recognised gains and losses - (7,730 (9,055) {16,785) {8,922)
Other recognised gains / (losses):
Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined
benefit pension schemes 20 - 8,625 - 8,525 8,429
Net movement in funds - 795 (9,058) (8,260) (493)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 18 2.960 {26,552) 248,995 225,403 225,895
Total funds carried forward 2,960 {25,757) 239,940 217,143 225,403

The deficit restricted general reserve includes surplus restricted general funds of £1,564,000 offset by deficil pension raserves of
£27,322,000
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 AUGUST 2018

Fixed assels
Tangible assefs
Invesiments
Tatal fixed assets

Current assets

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand
Total cusrent assets

Liabilities:

Creditors: Amounts falling due within ane year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilittes

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Net assets excluding pension liability
Pension scheme liability

Net assets including pension liability

Funds of the academy:
Restricted funds
. Fixed asset fund(s}
. Restricted income fund(s)
. Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted funds
. Unrestricted income fund(s)

Total unrestricted funds

Total Funds

Jeremy King
Chair of Trustees

Notes

12

13
14

15

20

18
18
18, 20

18

36

217,143

{27.322)

214,183

2,960

217,143

2018
£1000 £1000
239,939
339,039
13
4,518
12,768
17,000 -
(10,173)
6,926
246,865
(2,400)
244,465
(27,322)

233,940
1,565

2,960

2017
£'000 £'000

247,871

747,871
7
4,038
13,709
17.754
(8,512)

9,242

257113

(468)

256,645

(31,242)

225,403

248,995

4,690

(31,242)

533,443

2,960

2,060

225,403

The financial statements set out on pages 35 to 105 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees and authorised
for issue on 11 December 2018 and sighed on its behalf by:



REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by / {used in) operating activities
Cash funds transferred on conversion

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends, interest and rents from investmenis

Capital funding from sponsors and others
Payments to acquire fixed assets

Cash flows from financing activites
Cash inflows from new borrowing

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents brought forward

Cash and cash equivalents carried forward
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2018
Total
£'000

(65)
{115)

(180)

57
21 3,000

(6,818)

(3,781)

22 3,000

3,000

{941)

13,708

12,768

2017
Total
£1000

{1,348)

{1,511)

(2,859)

47
4,303

(1,904

2,446

(@13)

14,122

13,709
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REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2018

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2008.

REAch2 Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts and have concluded that the Academy
Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are
no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. Thus they continue
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the accounts.

Conversion to an Academy Trust

The conversion of one state maintained school to an academy and its transfer into the Academy Trust involved
the transfer of identifiable assets and liabilities and the operation of the schools for £nil consideration. The
substance of the transfer is that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out helow.

The assets and Habilities transferred on conversion from the maintained school to the Academy Trust have
heen valued at their fair value. The fair value has been derived based on that of equivalent items. The amounts
have been recognised under the appropriate balance sheet categories, with a corresponding amount
recognised in Donations — transfer from Local Authority on conversion in the Statement of Financial Activities
and analysed under Unrestricted Funds, Restricted General Funds and Restricted Fixed Asset Funds. Further
details of the transaction are set out in note 28.

income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.
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Notes 1o the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2018

Accounting policies (Continued)

Grants receivable

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activittes on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there
is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income
is received, the income is accrued. :

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the Restricted
Fixed Asset Fund.

Sponsorship income ,

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance- related
conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis {where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated doods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and 'Income from
other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading
activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as 'Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements
until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’.

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this
reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income
from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and
depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust's accounting policies.

On conversion, the school properties were transferred from the Local Authority and legacy academies to the
Academy Trust for £nil consideration. Such properties are included in the accounts at fair value,
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REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2018

Accounting policies (Continued)

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit {0 a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity, The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable o a single
activity are aflocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than oneg activity and
support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset's use,

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating ta the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Governance costs
These include the costs attributable to the Academy Trust's compliance with constitutional and statutory
requirements, including audit, strategic management, Trustees’ meetings and reimbursed expenses.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Assets costing £500 or more, are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Shest at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the refated grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet, Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with Unrestricted Funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the Unrestricted Fund.
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REACH2 ACADENMY TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2018

Accounting policies (Continued)

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated {o write off
the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold buildings 50 years

Leasehold land and buildings 50 years or UEL, whichever is lower
Furniture and equipment 4 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Mator vehicles 4 years

No depreciation is provided in respect of freehold land.

A review for impairment of a fixed assetis carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obiigation at the halance sheet date as a result of a past event, it
is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will
pay to settle the debf or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must
provide.

Leasing and hire purchase commitments
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged against income on a straight line basis over the period
of the lease.

Stock
Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
price less further costs to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stock.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered fo pass the fests sef out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a Charitable Company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the
Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
('TPSY) and the Local Government Pension Scheme {'LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2018

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined
by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method.
As stated in note 20, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available
to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust in
separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency
to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance
sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of
scheme introductions, benefit changes, setllements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff
costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement
of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income
on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of
the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income
on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised
gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and
losses.

1.12 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed
by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other Restricted Funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for
Education.

1.13 Financial instruments

Basic financial instrumenis
Trade and other debtors / creditors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs.
Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses in the case of frade debtors. If the arrangement constitutes a financing
transaction, for example if payment is deferred beyond normal business terms, then it is measured at the
present value of future payments discounted at a market rate of instrument for a similar debt instrument.

Interest-bearing borrowings classified as basic financial insiruments

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at the present value of future payments discounted at
a market rate of interest. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-hearing borrowings are stated at
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)

amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the cash flow statement.

1.14 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of -
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension lability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2017 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at
31 August 2017. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

The Academy Trust included properties transferred on conversion at fair value, being recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the year of conversion, The Trust engages independent valuation
specialists to determine fair value. The valuer used a valuation technigue based on a discounted cash
flow mode! as there is a lack of comparable market data because of the nature of the properties.
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2 Donations and Capital Grants

Donated Assels
Othar Donations
Capital Grants - DIE F EFA
Funds inherited on teansfer

REAGH2 ACADEMY TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2018

Unrestricted Restricted 2018 2017
Funds Funds Total Total
£'oco £'000 £'060 £'600

- 14,903 14,903 12,562

- 3,000 3,000 4,303

- 115 115 334

- 18,018 18,018 17,199

Capital grants relate {0 ESFA Devolved Capital and School Cendiliening Funding

Curing the year two new academies joined the Trust - Summerside Primary Academy and Greervidge Primary Academy, Their tangibie fixed assels at this

date 1otalled £14,902,569 and have been recognised as donated assets in the year. As well as transferring their 1angible fixed assets, net restricted and

unresiricted funds totafling £114,308 were transferred to the Trust. These have been recognised as restricted funds inherited upon cenvarsion.

3 Funding For Educational Operations

DSE / ESFA and Other Government Grants

DIk f ESFA General Annual Grant
DfE } ESFA Start Up Granls

Of& / ESFA Pupif Premium

DfE | ESFA Other Grants

Other Govermnmeant Revenus Grants

Cther Income
School Trips
Calering Income
Music Lessons
Clubs

Other

Unifarm Sales

The master funding agreement of the Trus is not subject to limits on the amount of GAG that il could carry forward at 31 August 2018,

Unrestricted Restricted 2018 2017
Funds Funds Total Total
£'000 - £'co0 £'000 £'000

- 72,262 72,262 70,202

- 732 732 563
- 7,807 7.807 7,955

- 3,634 3,634 2,734
- 8,110 8,110 814G

- 92,5456 92,545 89,594

- 71 710 628
1,039 - 1,039 945
- 103 103 a3

- 1,234 1,234 1,081
429 - 429 308
80 B 50 63
1518 2,047 3,565 3123
1,518 94,592 86,110 92,717

DFE/ESFA Other Granls includas £372,864 of rates grants, £10,301 of insuranca grants and £2,192,449 of funding for Universal Infant Free Schoal Meals.

Other governmant revenua grants includes £3,841,706 of Early Years Foundation funding and £2,764,469 of SEN funding,

4 Other Tradlng Actlvities

Letlings
QOther income

5 investment Income

Bank inlerest
Pension

Unrestricted Restrlcted 2018 2017
Funds Fitnds Totat Total
£'and £'000 £060 £000

399 - 389 407

126 - 726 805

1,125 - 1,125 1,212
Unrestricted Restricted 2018 2017
Funds Funds Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

33 - 33 47

24 24 -

33 24 57 47
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6 Ofher trading expenses

Educational operations
. Direcl costs (note 7)
. Allocated support costs (note 7)

. Impiementation costs

Assets transferred cut of Trust
Governance cosls including allocated support costs

Fixed asset adiusiment
Transfer from Local Auihority

. Loans on conversion
. Inkerited defined pension liability

Total expenditure

No unresiricled reserves have bean expended in the year.

Other trading expenses (continued}

Fees payable to audilor - audit
- ather services
- other leases
Onperating lease rental - land and buildings
Operating lease rentals - plant, machinery and eaquipment
Dreprecialion
lmpairment
(Profit) / oss on disposal of fixed assets
lmpairment
Governors' fiakility insurance

REACGH2 ACADEMY TRUST

Notes to the Flnancial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2018

Staff Costs Non Pay Expenditure Total Totat
Premises  Other Costs 2018 2017
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
68,638 1,747 12,547 80,932 80,486
16,035 6,858 19,120 42,013 29,394
82873 8,605 31,667 122,945 106,880
8,602 8,602 9,291
565 B - 585 926
83,238 8,605 40,269 132,412 120,097
2018 2017
£000 £000
86 81
28 18
' 265
- 265
322 425
18,577 B,256
0
0
- 6




REAGH2 ACADEMY TRUST
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7 Charitable Activities - Educationat Operations

Total Total
2018 2017
£'000 £000
Direct cosis
Teaching slaff costs 40,638 38,523
Other direct staff costs 16,484 17,876
Direct supply costs 3,632 3,396
Pension costs - deficit repayment contributions & net service cosis 4,659 4,858
Educational supplies 2,398 2,300
Tachnology costs ' 1,189 1,282
Staff development 1,326 are
Recruitmeant 325 699
School uniform 80 101
Free school meals - 776 798
Catering 3,025 3,144
Siaff iranspor and {ravel 703 667
Telephones a7 403
Prinling, postage and stationary 286 286
Legal and professicnal fees 332 482
Insurance 218 187
Licences and subscriplions 322 248
Marketing and advertising 38 39
Educational visits B 993 946
Educalional consuitancy 586 667
Music services 425 315
Hire of eguipment 558 581
Ciher educational senvices 9471 440
Bank interest 39 20
Cther direct costs 643 731
80,0932 80,486
Support costs
Support staff costs 16,035 14,888
Depreciation & impairment 18,577 8,264
Maintenance of premises and equipment 2,368 2,282
Cleaning 1,297 1,094
Insurance 333 357
Utilties 1,464 1,276
Security 187 76
Rent and rates 185 685
Health and safety 127 108
Other occupancy cosls 317 215
QOlher support costs 429 42
41,899 29,297
Audit
- audk of financial stalements 86 &1
- other 28 16
114 97
Total Support Costs 42,013 29,394
Inherited pension #abilities 565 926
Ilmpact of assets fransferred out of 1he Trust 8,603 9,291
Teaching Schoo!
Total Costs 132,113 120,097
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8 Staff Costs

a) Staff cost

Staff costs during the year were:

Total Total

2018 2017

£000 £000
Wages and salaries ) 58,293 57,325
Social security costs 4,730 4,942
Penslion costs 14,427 13,702
Apprenticeship levy 267 108
77,717 76,077
Supply staff costs 3,832 3,398
Staff development and other staff costs 1,324 68
Pensian liability inherited on transfers 565 026
#3,238 80,467

b) Staff severance payments

Included within the staff restructuring cosls are severance payments totalling £171,612. Individually, the payments were £3,734,
£8,413, £8,960, £12,262, £13,166, £13,463, £21,564, £21,750, £22,000, £46,300.

c} Staff numbers

The average number of persons {including senior management feam) employed by REAch2 Academy Trust during the year
expressed as full time equivalents were as follows:

2018 2017
No. No.
Charitable Activities
Teachers 931 790
Admin and support 1,154 1,163
Management and central team 92 100
2177 2,063

The average number of persons {including senior management team) employed by REAch2 Academy Trust during the year were as

foltows:

Charitable Activities
Teachers

Admin and support
Management and central team

2018 2017

No. No.
951 802
2,045 1,598
110 169
3,108 2,869
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d) Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employes benafits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

2018 2M7
No. No,

| £60,001 - £70,000
£76,001 - £80,000
£80,001 - £90,000
£80,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £110,000
£410,001 - £120,000
£120,601 - £130,000
£130,001 - £440,000
£140,001 - £150,000
£160,001 - £160,000
£160,001 - £170,000
£170,001-£180,000
£230,000 - £240,000
£240,000-£250,000

- Ly
=3
=x]
=]

O 20+ 0C0 = = h N WU
e

-0 = 00000 Wk winw

e) Key management personnel
The key management parsonnel of REAch2 Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the Senior Management

Team as listed on page 2. The lotal amounl of employee benefis (including employer pension conlriputions)
raceived by key management personne! for their services to the Trust was £619, 193 (2017:£719,651).

9 Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One trustee has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment with the academy trust,
The Chief Execulive Officer only receivas remuneration in the respect of seivices they pravide undertaking the role
of the Chief Executive under their contract of employment,

Sir Sleve Lancashire (Chief Execulive Officer and Accaunting Officer} £230,000 - £240,000 {(2017:£240,000 - £250,000)

The above employes participated in the Teachers' Penston Scheme this year. During 1he year ended 31 August 2018
pension contdbutions amounted 1o £37,904 (2017:£40,623)

Payments made to Trustees of The Boarg relating to trave! and subsistence were £1,567 (2017: £3,452).

Olher refated party transaclions involving the Trustees are set out wilhin the related paries note.
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10 Trustees' and Officers' Insurance

11

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an alternative to
insurance where UK dovernment funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trusiees and officers from claims
arising from negligent acts, arrors or omissions occurring whilst on academy trust business, and provides cover up to
£10,000,000. It is not possible to guantify the trustee and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA
scheme membership,

Central Services
The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Accountancy and financial planning systems;

Accountancy support;

HR support;

Payrofl;

Estates strategic management and capital improvement;

Governance support;

Folicy development;

Executive Principals and Associate Schocl Leaders,

Scheol Performance Management;

Risk Management;

School leadership development and training;

School leadership performance management;

Trust leadership and networking;

Liaison with regulators and policy makers {(DfE, ESFA, Regional Schools’
Commissioner, OFSTED, Charities Commission and Companies House)
Media and publicity management;

Crisis management.

The Trust charges for these services based on a percentage of GAG income excluding grants received towards rates and

insurance. In 2018 this was 5.5% (2017: 5.5%). in addition where academies have received additional growth funding /
place funding from local authorities a further nil% has been charged (2017: 5.5%).
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11 Central Services {continued)
The amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2018 2017
£'400 £'000

Aerodrame Primary Academy 74 76
Beccles Primary Academy 55 59
Bramptan Primary Academy 86 86
Broadmead Primary Academy - 60
Burrsville Infant Acadamy 52 45
Bushbury Lene Primary Academy 53 26
Camulos Primary Academy 7 18
Castle Hill Primary Academy - : 122
Chapel End Junior Academy 91 92
Chigwell Primary Academy 48 51
Civitas Academy 32 24
Concordia Primary Academy 23 18
Copperfield Academy 100 95
Dorothy Barley Junior Academy 120 120
Eastbrook Primary Acaderny 84 86
Flve Spires Academy 2 12
Garden City Academy 54 53
Greenridge Primary Academy 21 -
Gunton Primary Academy 64 64
Heath Hayes Primary Academy s 35
Kemsley Primary Academy 46 46
Kirby Primary Academy 46 42
Langtons Junior Academy 65 70
Lawley Village Academy 25 15
Manor Park Primary Academy 103 108
Martlesham Primary Academy 24 20
Meadow Primary Academy 47 48
Milton Court Primary Acadermy 43 47
Minerva Academy 26 53
Moor Green Primary Academy 102 a7
Northfield St Nicholas Primary Acaderny 99 102
Norton Canes Primary Academy 49 49
Qakfield Primary Academy 74 72
Pemberley Academy 34 28
Purfleet Primary Academy 111 108
Racemeadow Primary Academy 51 52
Ranikhet Academy 54 59
Riverside Academy 47 48
Robert Fitzray Acadermy 146 138
Sclentia Academy 78 62
Silkmore Primary Academy 49 44
Sir Martin Frobisher Primary Academy 73 72
Springhill Primary Academy 38 37
Sprites Primary Academy 84 88
St Margaret's Primary Academy a7 86
St Mark's Church of England Primary Acaderny 48 47
Summerside Primacy Academy 125 -
The Globe Primary Academy 112 116
The Palmer Primary Academy o0 94
The Woodside Primary Academy 261 249
Tidemill Academy 89 143
Tymberwood Academy 92 40
Unity Primary Academy 87 81
Veritas Primary Academy 58 42
Water Lane Primary Academy 40 42
White Meadows Primary Academy 128 122
Wilshere-Dacre Junior Academy 52 52

3,844 3,812
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12 Tangible Fixed Assets

13

14

Caost or Valuation
At 1 Saptember 2017
Additions

Disposals
Reclassification

At 31 August 2018

Depreciation

At 1 September 2017
Charged in year
Disposals

At 31 Augusl 2018

Net book values
At 31 Aegust 2018
Al 31 August 2017

REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Augest 2018

Freehold Land Leasehold  Furniture and  Computer  Assets under Moter Total
and Buildings Land and Eqtiipment Equipment  construction  Vehicles
Buildings
£'0600 £'000 £'900 £'000 £'000 £'008 £'600 )
5,719 264,437 4,776 2,911 1,843 56 269,742
8,188 547 563 948 26,246
(10,719) (38) (138) (25) (10,918)
1,327 (1,327) '
5,719 263,233 5,285 3,338 1,464 31 279,070
254 15,5612 3,845 2,227 - 33 21,871
7 17,397 549 616 8 18,577
(1,126) (30) (136} {25} (1,317
261 31,783 4,364 2,707 - 16 39,131
5,458 231,450 a1 631 1,464 15 239,939
5,485 238,925 931 684 1,843 23 247,871

Inciuded in buildings is an amount of £1,367,500 in respect of land which is not deprecialed,

Where fixed assets have transferred upon merger from existing Academy Trusts or from Local Autharities, the cost recognised in fixed asset
additions is equal to the net book value of fixed assels on the date of transfer, Upon transfer, management have considered the usefu economic
life of each asset at both the dale of its initfal recognition, when it was originally purchased, and at the date of transfer fo the Trust. Accordingly
depreciatien has been charged over the reassessed useful economic life of the assal, Where the year ended 31 August 2018 would have
represented the final year of an assets useful economic e prior to transferring te the Trust, should the assassment by management have
identified no extension of useful sconomic life, the entire cost recognised in additions in year was depreciated In the year ended 31 August 2018,
This wilt also have affected the charge made against assets with useful economic fives due to expire in 2017 and 2018,

Stock

Educalicnal supplies

Debtors: amounts owed within one year

Trade debtors

Prepayments & accrued income

Other debtors

51

2018
£'000
13
13

2018
£'000

1,238
3,017

63
4318

N7
£000

2017
£'000

1,486
2,382

170
4,038
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Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2018
£'000
Trade creditors ' 3193
Taxation and social security 32
Other creditors 692
Accruals and deferred income 5,365
Loan 611
10,173
Deferred income 2018
£'000
Deferred Income brought forward 2,953
Amounts released from previous years {2,953)
Resources deferred in the year 3,516
Deferred Income carried forward 3,516

2017
£'000

2,420
226
850

4,905
111

8,512

2017
£'000

2,156
(2,156)
2,653
2,053

Included in deferred income are amounts received in advance from the Local Authorities and the ESFA for Free School Meals, Early

Years Funding, capital grants and other pupil related income.

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2018

£'000
Loan
Due 1 - 2 years 600
Due 2 - 5 years 1,800
Due over 5 years

2,400

Other

Due 1- 2 years -
Due 2 - 5 years -
Due over 5 years -

2017
£'000

178
228

62
468

included within creditors is a loan of £3,000,000 from the Education and Skills Funding Agency, as part of the MAT Loan Pifot

scheme. Interest is charged on the loan at 1.91%, and repayable in equal instalments over the next 10 years
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Funds

REACH2 ACADEMY FRUST

Fioles to the Finsnclsl Slatements
For the year endad 31 fugust 2018

Balarce at Wncoming Resourcas Galns, losses. Antance R
1 Septenier resources. wxpended and transfers 3 Avgust
wir 2018
1060 K00% K003 £00% E000
Resiricled generaifunds
Ganedal Al Grant (GAG) 2262 {12.262) -
Start Up Grant ™ @30 .
Pidl Prembum 1207 (7.500)
Other DXEE FA grants 275 [k ] .
Ot gevernment icema 110 @16 .
Caher resdicted 2047 RN -
Funds inheriled o transders hom LA and merpers 459 315 2.001) 1,239 1645
45% X E6E) {1.238) 3585
Bention bsarva Bz 24 (4629 (XT3 21272
{28.552) 27 (101.313) A5G 2575
Resirkted fleed astet funds
DFE/EFA capial prants aad expendiure ot QAG At,toa L] HET
Dronated astats 201891 14503 1239 208413
248,895 L] 1239 239950
Totalrestricled funds 232,443 112725 {12510} 3525 214182
Uneestricted funds
General Funds 28560 2676 2,678) - 2968
Tatatunresticted funds Z 80 2670 12,876} - 2,960
Totai funds 225 400 £15.401 iz e B528 27143
texpect of the 13 a3 foliows:
Balince al incoming Resources Gainy, lostes Bafance @l
1September FESOWCES erpended and tanstets 31 August
2018 27
(1] £00G E000 £000 [yio]
Genesal Ansial Grand (GAG) 505 70202 @007 - B
Shat Up Cranl 563 {563) -
Pupd Framum 545 7,555
Oiher DIEEFA granls 713 @73 -
Cther govemment iionia 8,140 (8.140} -
Ottt resisiclod t8a7 {1,897 -
Funds bibwited o A 5975 44 2820 4560
A8t a7 4.518) - 4690
Pension resarve 26231 3440 5429 3,242
{28,750) 81735 87.9c8) 849 26552
Resljcied fixed asset fundy
DXE/EFA eap2al geants and esperdturs o GAG 51065 430 ©.269) AT
Dxnated nssals 200,671 12,562 (11292 : 20180
251,628 16,855 (19,556} - 248995
Tolziresiited hunds 222638 103 508 {75321 [XFE] 222443
Urveshiicled fumds
Gensdal Funds 1960 2518 2575} - 2560
Tetal unrestricled hunds 2550 2575 @515 - 7560
Totalfunds ZEER9s RLLAELD 1200873 8429 225463
A CLzent year and priof year combined postion 12 a3 follows:
Balance Lnomibig Resources Sainy, wsaas Batance at
1 September resovces expended avd lransfers 3 August
2016 w018
£000 003 £008 EO00 [35:4]
Restrkied general tands
General Anaual Grant (GA) 505 12455 {142,569} . -
Stant Up Granl 1205 (1,205 - -
Pui Premium 15,162 115,762} -
Crher DEEFA gravts 5459 (6,455} - -
Other povemiment inbome: 16250 {16,250 B -
Other rastricted 3854 3,551) . .
Funds inheried o lmasfers i LA wnd imergers 8978 459 (4521 0238 1665
7481 136533 191.210) 1228} 1,565
Pengion reseve (35,231) A 055 15,954 (27,322}
8,750} 186657 153.278) 35,715 25157}
Restikled flied pasel funds
OE/EFA coptal grant s and opendiura Irom GAG 51,065 73 26841y
Cepitad funds inherited i ranlers froin LA and mengers. . - - .-
Dl ed s3sets. 20621 27,465 0,012 1239
TeT.EES 3378 (47,753) 1339 7381
Totalresirkied funds 222,533 223,335 247.00%) 16854 214,483
Unresicklad funds
Groveral Funde 2950 251 15251 - 2550
Total ntesticled funds 295 5753 5251} - 2560
Total unds 22585 226576 1252,203) 18981 FaiATE]
Tha speciic e i
Restricted used for of tha Trusd, In e 14 Funding Ag y of Stata, the Trust was nol subject 1o 2 kel on tho amounl of GAS Ihat 8 tould cany forward al 31 August 2018,
Restricted fiuad ascet funds 210 vyed skl for Capital purputes it Ena vilh tha strategic objsclives of the Trusl.
Untestictod finds v ba wsed Invars meeting 1ha charitable shiectivas of the Trus! al te discretion of tha Truslees.
Funds lrznsters refateta 1ho p4asa schemo movemenls duding the pesod, from nd Feeunen! funding.




18 Fumnds {continued)

Analysis of academies by fund balance

REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2018

Fund balances at 31 August 2018 were aliacated as follows: 2018 2017
Aerodrome Primary Academy 578 353
Beccles Primary Academy 70 132
Bramptan Primary Academy {308) {120)
Broadmead Primary Academy o Q
Burrsvile Infant Academy 104 78
Bushbury Lane Primary Academy 176 72
Camulos Primary Academy 145 19
Caslle Hill Academy Q 43
Chapel End Junior Academy 188 202
Chigwell Primary Academy 135 138
Civitas Academy {38) 12
Concordia Pritmary Academy 133 81
Copperfield Academy {129) (L))
Darothy Barley Junior Academy 622 514
Eastbraok Primary Academy 230 349
Five Spires Academy (7 {8}
Garden Cily Academy 224 147
Greenridge Primary Academy 6 0
Gunton Frimary Academy 46 54
Heath Hayes Primary Academy 40 49
Kemsley Primary Academy 172 113
Kirhy Primary Academy 169 100
Langtens Junior Academy 3740 282
Lawfey Village Academy 36 5
Manos Park Peimary Academy 208 237
Martlesham Primary Academy (a1) {28)
Mijton Court Primary Academy 34 40
Minerva Academy 113 151
Maor Green Primary Academy 137 a7
Northfield St Nicholas Primary Academy (184) 159
Norton Canes Primary Academy 51 46
Oakfield Pdmary Academy 405 244
Pemberley Acadermny 339 87
Phoenix St Peter Academy (24) 26
Purfiset Primary Academy 120 44
Racemeadow Primary Academy 166 168
Ranikhet Academy 170 93
Reach2 Head Office (3,637) (5683)
Riverside Academy 202 167
Raobert Fitzroy Academy 354 443
Sclentia Academy 292 165
Silkmore Primary Academy 8 13
Sir Martin Frobisher Primary Academy 124 128
Springhill Primary Academy (gt) 167
Spritas Primary Academy 116 a8
St Margaret's Primary Academy . 245 130
St Mark’s Church of England Primary Academy 67 82
Sumierside Primary Academy 125 0
The Glohe Primary Academy 265 288
The Palmer Primary Academy 412 407
The Woodslde Primary Academy 92 858
Tidemill Academy 479 753
1 Tymberwecd Acadery 123 143
: Unity Primary Academy 166 115
| Verilas Primary Academy 161 37
; Waler Lane Prmary Academy 169 149
| White Meadows Primary Academy 371 189
| Wilshere-Dacre Junior Academy 94 54
} 4,525 7,650
Fixed asset reserves 239,940 248,595
| Pension reserve (27,322) (31,242)
217,143 225,403

The Reach2 Head Office reserves figure includes the impact of the acceunting treatment for increased capital expenditure during the year as well at that for a MAT Lozn of £6m over 10 years,
of which £3m had been received at 31 August 2018, with expenditure to match,
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Analysts of academles by cost

Teaching Other Support Educatlonal Suppiies Other Coste TFolal Totel
Stalt Costs Slalf Casta {excluding fixed 2018 2017
assel expenses)

E'000 £'000 £7000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Aeredrome Primary Academy 2,020 317 129 730 3168 3,759
Beceles Primary Acaderny 1305 184 36 o 1,335 1,519
Brampton Primary Academy 1,229 160 38 512 1,932 2229
Broadmead Primery Academy - - - - - 2,286
Burrsville Infant Academy 756 168 27 159 1,310 1,441
Bushbury Lane 574 109 47 205 1,025 £30
Castle MIi Academy - - 1 50 51 3,157
Camubos Academy 572 127 52 199 §50 948
Lhapel Ead Junior Acedemy 1,231 235 a7 515 248 2,344
Chigwel Primary Academy 517 156 22 246 941 1,087
Civitas Academy 352 a3 13 250 698 571
Concerdia Primary Academy 241 36 21 95 393 250
Copperfield Academy 1,592 iss 57 516 2,353 2,682
Doruthy Barley funlor Academy 1519 27 37 524, 2,352 2,022
Eastbroak Primary Acadamy 1,395 204 3a 295 1,932 513
Flve Spfres Academy 295 i00 23 143 5582 845
Garden City Academy 912 135 33 295 1,375 1273

Gieenridge Primary Academy am T ED) Frl 480 -
Guntan Frimary Academy 976 122 30 311 1,439 1,000
Heath Hayes Primary Academy 463 110 23 226 0822 1.524
Kemsley Primary Academy 672 115 27 205 1,614 458
Kirby Primary Academy 562 146 23 204 935 2,615
Langtons Junior Acadamy 819 197 18 307 1341 G614
Lawley Wiiage Academy 313 43 ExS 160 552 1,329
Manor Park Frimary Acadeny 1,137 339 28 672 2178 1,286
Martiasham Primary Academy ’ 354 71 11 137 573 5,412
Milton Court Primary Acadepmy 675 108 15 262 1,098 2,500
Minarva Academy 334 251 e 559 1,163 4,163
Waor Grasn Primary Academy 1,251 165 48 . 678 2142 1,895
Northfield St Nicholas Primary Academy 1,585, 261 147 495 2488 837
Nerton Canes Primary Acadsmy ’ 721 155 37 284 1,197 2914
Qakfield Primary Academy o81 172 30 364 1,547 1122
Pemberley Academy 422 141 33 121 i 1.555
Phaenix St Peter Academy 645 142 as 313 1,135 2,003
Purlleat Primary Academy 1,687 77 54 478 2,598 1273
Racemeadow Primary Academy 754 118 16 260 1,148 3,135
Ranikhet Acadamy 630 106 29 390 1,205 1761
Reach2 Head Oifice - 5,534 197 3,624 0,355 1,462
Rivarsida Acadamy 07 120 -4 250 1,073 1283
Robrert Fitiroy Academy 2,143 403 13 760 3437 1,765
Sciantia Academy 895 224 40 412 1571 112
Sltkmare Primary Academy 754 3 34 336 1,220 2,243
Sir Martin fFrobisher 922 248 66 397 1,633 2435
Springhill Primary Academy 622 B& 2 246 a7s 1,055
Speltas Primary Acadamy 1,154 223 28 175 1,780 . 2,623
St Margaret's Primary Academy 1,158 233 0] 555 2,024 2,258
St Mark's Church of England Primary Academy 644 137 12 217 1,010 7.355
Summerside Primary Academy 191t 312 45 665 2,837 -

Tha Glohe Primary Aradsmy 1,607 206 33 431 2,337 3771
The Palmer Primary Academy 1,298 182 35 502 2,017 2,615
The Woadside Primary Arademy 4,350 1,089 126 1,173 6,738 2,025
Tidemili Academy 2227 368 68 5= ] 3,357 123
Tymbervoad Academy 1,525 108 23 286 2,242 1134
Unity Primary Academy 1,08¢ 306 a3 529 1,848 3,047
Veritas Primary Acadsmy .73 163 a9 318 1,351 1184
Water Lane Primary Academy 538 144 9 157 48 3,759
White Meadeows Primary Acadeny 2,165 89 . 55 442 2,951 1519
Wilshere-Dacre Junior Academy 715 126 ELY 312 1,188 2,229
58,673 16,484 2398 24,478 100033 108,093

56




REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2018

19  Analysis of net assets between funds
Fund balances at 31 August 2018 are represented by:

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

General Fund  Generat Fixed
Fund Asset Fund

2018

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - " 239,939 239,939
Current assetls 2,960 14,139 - 17,099
Current liabilities - (10,173} 4 - {10173
Non-Current liabilities (2,400} (2.400)
Pensicn scheme liability - (27,322) - (27,322)
Total net assels 2,960 (25,756} 239,939 217,143

Comparative information in respect of the preceeding period is as follows:

Unrestricted Resltricted Restricted Total
General Fund  General Fixed
Fund Asset Fund

2018

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - - 247,871 247,871
Current assels 2,960 13,670 1,124 17,754
Current Habilities - (8,980} - (8,980)
Non-Current liabilities (31,242) (31,242)
Pension scheme liability - - - -
Total net assels 2,960 (26,552) 248,995 225,403
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20 Penston and Similar Obligations
The Trust's employaes belong to two principaf pension schemas: the Teachers' Pension Scheme Engfand and Wales (TPS) for

academic and related staff; and the Lacat Government Pension Scheme {LGPS) for non-teaching staff. Both are multi-employer
definied henefil schemas.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2018 and of the LGPS 31 March 2016.
Contributions ameunting 1o £105% (2017: £107k) were payable to the Teachers Pension Scheme at 31 August 2018 and are
Included within creditors.

Gontributions amounting to £80k (2017: £85k) were payable to the Local Gavernment Pension Scheme at 31 August 2018 and
are included within creditors,

Teachers’ Pansion Scheme

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent quakfied actuaries.

The employer's pension costs paid io TPS in the pericd ended 31 August 2018 amounted to £8,343,000 (2017: £8,530,000).

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS} is a statutory, centributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers® Pensions
Regulations (2010) and from 1 April 2014, by Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for full-
time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007, austomatic for teachers in part-time employment following appoiniment or
change of contact, although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on & 'pay as you go' basis - these contributions along with those
made by employers are credited to the Exchequer, Retirement and ather pension benefits are pald hy public funds provided by
Parfiament.

Valuation of the Teachers® Pansion Scheme

Mot less than every four years the Government Actuary, using normal acluarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of
the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (valuations and Employer Gost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM

Treasury. The aim of the review is to spacify the fevel of fulure contributions. Actuarial scheme vajuations are dependent on
assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many olher factors.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was out as at 3 March 2012 and in accordance with the Public Service Pensions
(Valuation and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014, The valuation report was pubkshed by the Department for Education on @
June 2014. They key elements of the valuation and subsequent censultation are:

- employer contribulion rates set at 16,48% of pensicnable pay (inciuding a 0.08% employer administration charge;

- tota] scheme liabiliies for service to the effective date of £181,500 million, and notional assets of £176,600 million, giving a
nofional past service deficit of £14,900 milion; and

- an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pansionable pay will be apalied to future valuations

- the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of pricas and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growih is
assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of refurn is 5.06%

Teachers' Pension Scheme Changes

During the previous year the emplayer contribution rale was 16.48%. The next valuation of the TPS will be as at March 2019,
whereuplon the employer contribution rate Is expecled rats is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 Apsil 2019,

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Penslons websie,

Under the definitlons sef out in Financial Reporling Standard (FRS102), the TPS is a multi-employer pensien scheme. The teust

has accounled for its contribulions to the scheme as if it were a defined confribution scheme. The trust has set cut above the
information on the scheme.
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20 Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

Local Government Pension Schemes

REAch2 is one of several employing bodies included within the Lecal Government Pension Scheme (LGPS}.

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefil scheme, with Lthe assets held in separate trustee-administered funds, Separate disclosure
has been provided for each scheme - City of Wesiminster Pension Fund, Essex Pension Fund, Kent County Council Pension
Fund, Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund, West Midlands Pension Fund, Hertfordshire Counly Council Pensior Fund,
Londen Borough of Barking and Dagenham Pensien Fund, Londan Borough of Croydon Pension Fund, London Borough of
Havering Pension Fund, London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund, Staffordshire Pension Fund, Suffelk Pensien Fund,
Warwickshire Pension Fund, West Sussex Counly Council Pension Fund, Londen Berough of Bexiey Pension Fund, Lendon
Borough of Waltham Ferest Pension Fund, Shropshire County Pension Fund, Bamet Council Pension Fund and
Buckinghamshire County Council Pension Fund.,

Partiament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the evenl of academy
closure, outstanding local government pension scheme liakilittes would be met hy the Department for Education. The guarantee
came into force on 18 July 2013,

£'000
Inherited
Pension  (liabitity) / Actuarial Pension
Fiability assetin  Net service gains / liabitity
bAwd year costs {fosses) cffwd
City of Westminster
Minerva Academy 21 (30) 30 (21)
21 - (30) 30 (21)
Essex
Burrsvilie Infant Academy (749) 94y 144 {69%)
Camules Primary Academy {27) (43) 18 (52)
Chigwell Primary Academy (226) (45) 71 (300)
Kirby Primary Academy (613) (8Q) 12 {561)
Pamberley Academy {47) (38) 3 (54)
Purfleet Primary Academy {1,136) {149) 253 (1,032)
Sir Martin Frobisher (779) {135) 207 {707)
Unity Pdimary Academy (1,348) {141) 287 (1,202)
Water Lane Primary Academy (B63) (63) 415 {511)
75,568) - T768) 1,238 5.118)
Kent County Council -
Combined Academies (4) {3.471) {499) 050 (3,026)
{3,471 - {499) 950 (3.026)
Royal County Council of Berkshire
Combined Academies (3) {1,627) - {225) 3g4 (1,458)
(1,627) - {225) 324 (1,458)
West Midlands
Bushbury Lane Academy (403) (43) 54 {392)
Manor Park Pimary Academy (1,706) {131) 248 (1,589)
Moor Green Primary Academy {874) {102) 185 {B91)
(3,083) - {2/6) 48/ (2.872)
Hertfordshire County Council
Garden City Academy (269) (56) a7 (228)
Wilshire Dacre Junior Academy (273) (40) 53 (260)
(542) - (98) 150 (488)
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham
Dorolhy Bartey Junior Academy (370) {155) 221 (304)
(370) - {1585) 221 (304)
London Borough of Croydon
Aarodrome Primary Academy ®&11) {183) 283 {731)
Castie Hill Academy {1,079) 1,079 - -
Rabhert Fitzroy Academy (3g4) {199) 182 411)
S Marks Church of Engtand Primary Schaol (369) {60) &9 {360)
{2,653) 1079 {442) 514 (1,502)

59



REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Auvgust 2018

20 Pension and Si'mifar Ohtigations (continued)

L.ondon Borough of Havering

Concordia Academy {6) {15) 10 (1)
Langtons Junior School (189) (51} a0 {160)
(195) - (66) 90 (171)

{ ondon Borough of Lewlsham

Tidemik Academy {1,222) {175) 350 (1,047}
(1,222) - {1/5) 350 {1,047}
London Borough of Barnet
Summerside Primary Academy - (585) {612) 363 (B14)
- (565) {612) 363 (814)
Staffordshive
Combined Academies {7) (2,196) - {419) 667 {1,948)
{2,196) - {419) 667 {1,948)
Suffolk
Beccles Primary Academy {415) 41 83 (373
Gunton Primary Academy {565) {52) a3 (524)
Martfesham Primary Academy (64) (14) 21 i)
Phoenix St. Peter Primary Academy {224) {30y 92 {162}
Norhfield 81 Nichalas Primary Academy . (930) (99) 168 {861)
Spriles Primary Academy (534) (64} 119 {479)
St Margarets Primary Academy {279) (56) 87 {248)
(3,011) - (366} 663 (2,704)
Warwickshire
Combined Academies (3) (1,682} {221) 457 {1,446)
(1,682) - (221} 457 (1,446)
West Sussex County Council
Eastbrook Primary Academy (479) (a9) 164 {424)
The Globe Piimary Academy (528) (105} 271 {362)
White Meadows Primary Academy {440} (158) 209 {389)
(1,447} - (362} 634 {1,175
L.ondon Borough of Bexley
Brampton Primary Academy (634) (40) 162 {812)
(634} B @0) 162 [
Buckinghamshire County Council
Greenridge Primary Academy - {23) 7 {16)
- - (23) Fi {(16)
Londor Borough of Waltham Forest
Chapel End Junior Academy (124) (14) 72 (66)
The Woodside Primary Academy {2,8685) (174) 686 (2,353)
REAch?2 Head Office (403) {144) 366 {181)
{3,392) - (332) 1124 (2,600)
Shropshire Gounty Council
Lawley Village Academy {103} (27) 24 {108)
(103) - (27) 24 {106)
Total 208 (31,237) 514 (5,124) 8,525 (27,322)
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20 Pension and Similar Obligations {continued)

The total contributions made for the period ended 31 August 2018 were;

£000's
Ers Ees Total
City of Westminster
Minerva Academy 25 12 37
25 12 37
Essex
Burrsville Infant Academy a2 19 81
Camulos Primary Academy 4¢ 10
Chigwefl Primary Academy 33 g 42
Kirby Primary Academy 49 13 62
Pemberley Academy 32 9 41
Purflaet Primary Acadamy 109 33 142
Sir Martin Frobisher Primary Academy 78 23 101
Unity Primary Academy 100 28 128
Water L.ane Primary Academy 39 11 50
542 155 697
Kent County Councif
Combined Academies (4) 368 105 473
368 105 473
Royal County Council of Berkshire
Combined Academies (3) 140 44 184
140 44 184
West Midlands
Bushbury Lane Primary Academy a3 8 41
Manor Park Primary Academy 154 36 180
Moor Green Primary Academy 50 20 74
248 64 10
Hertfordshire County Council
Garden City Academy 75 17 92
Wilshire Dacre Junior Academy 48 H 59
123 28 1561 -
1 ondon Borough of Barking and Dagenham
Dorothy Bartey Junior Academy 104 33 137
104 a3 137
London Borough of Croydon
Aerodrome Primary Academy 124 41 165
Casile Hill Academy - - -
Rabert Fitzroy Academy 115 42 157
St Marks Church of England Primary School 52 14 66
291 a7 388
London Boraugh of Havering
Cancordia Primary Academy 12 4 16
Langtons Junier School 83 14 a7
65 18 83
London Barough of Lewisham
Tidemill Academy 166 A7 213
166 47 213
Londen Borough of Barnet
Summerside Primary Academy 138 a2 170
138 32 170
Staffordshire
Combined Academies (7) 369 102 471
- 369 102 471
Suktolk
Becclas Primary Academy 54 12 66
Gunion Pimary Academy 69 15 84
Marllesham Primary Academy 24 5 29
Phoenix 5t Peter Primary Academy 44 9 53
Norlhfield St Nicholas Pémary Academy 135 29 164
Sprites Primary Academy a5 20 115
St Margarets Primary Academy a9 19 108
510 109 619
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20 Pension and Simitar Obligations {continued)

Warwickshire
Combined Academies (3} 188 48 216
168 48 216

West Sussex County Council

Easthrook Primary Acaderny 93 23 116
The Globe Primary Acaderny 115 27 o142
White Meadows Primary Academy 137 38 175
a45 8 433
London Borough of Bexley
Bramptan Primary Academy 122 24 146
122 24 146
Buckinghamshire County Council
Greenridge Primary Academy 26 7 3a
26 7 33
London Borough of Waltham Forest
Chapel End Junior Academy 60 12 72
The Waoodside Primary Academy 494 105 509
REAchZ Head Office 544 143 692
1,103 280 1,363
Shropshire County Council
Lawley Village Academy 8 6 14
8 & 14
Total 2018 4,859 1,279 6,138

The eslimated value of employer contributions for the year ended 31 August 2018 is £4,890,000
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20 Pensien and Simitar Obligations (conlinued}

City of Westmlsster Pansion Fund
[
[

Princlpal Actuarial Assumptions (%) wis 2017

Rata ofincrease In sakaries a8 4.2

Rata of incraasa for pansians in paytentinfiabion 23 27

Discount rate for schama FabTties 27 2.8

inflatien assumption (CP} 23

The cument ons includa sufficiant alk far fstura imp in y Tha

assumed He evpectabions on retrament age 65 are!

Retring beday.

Halzs 245 244
Femalas 261 80
Ratiring in 20 years:

Males 268 287
Famalas. 85 283

Assetspllt (%):

Commutallen

Equities V4 ren
Property a4 30
Govemmenttonds - 40
Carparals bonds 140 100
Cash 10 1.0
“Tatal marketvalue of assets 1000 __106.0
Fa Valua of fund assats 1o 01
Prasant value af tha dafined benafit abigatian (s (172}
Hetdafined banaft pension Eablty (1) (21]

Total Expendiura Recogalsed In ihe
Statement of Financlet Activities

Operating cosl

Current sanica cost {netof employes

cantibutions) a5 50
Financing cost

interast on net defined benefit abityfassel) - 1
Bension expanse 55 51
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Analysis ol Panslor Flnance Income

Interest incama on sssets
Intarest on pansion labites
Pension finence cosls

Het mavement an assals and liakifites

Bffwd balanca 1 Septembar 2017
Inhariled on transtermarger
Employer tontibuton

Gument sanice cast

Pastsenvice cost

Intaresl gupensa

interest Incoms on assets
Actsarial (lossas) / gains

Delleiz at 3% August 2018

Movement In the present value of detined
Benelit obligatiens;

Biwd balanca 1 Saptember 2017
Inherited on ransferimergzr
Cumant sanice cost

Intarast avpansa

Emplayen cantribitions

Actuansl {gainsy lassas

Banafits paid

AL 21 August 2018

Movemend in the fair value of fund aseets:
Bifwrd balanee 1 Septamber 2017

Inherited on vansfermeryer

inlerast on assats

Remeasurament gaine/ (lassas)

Emplayar cantebutions

Employee conybutions

Benefts paid

AL31 August 2u18

Actual return on assets:
History of exparionce galns and lossas;
Evperience galns and Bsses oh a556ts

Amaunt
Percantage of assats

2018 2017
3 2
@ al
— -
Rt
25 2
[L
5] <]

3 2
20 103
[E )
122 149
58 50
3 3

12 12
@8y ey
@ -
161 1%
101 55
3 2

2 13

25 2
12 10
) -
T ol
] 15

2 13
1A% 129%

HEACHZ ACADEMY TRUST

Haoles to the Financia! Sisloments
For tha year ended 31 August 2018
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2¢ Penslon and Similar Obligation:s (continued)

Essex Penslon Fund

Camules Chigwell Slr Martin Water Lane
Burrsvilla Infant Primary Primary Kirby Primary Pemberley Purieet Primary Froblaher Unity Primary Primary
Academy Acad Academy Academy Academy Academy Primary Academy Academy Total
Principal Actuarial Assumptions (%) 2018 207 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 207 g 2017 2018 27
Rate of increase n salaries 38 42 3.8 4.2 2.8 42 2.8 4.2 3.8 42 3.8 42 38 4.2 2.8 4.2 3.8 42 3.8 4.2
Rate of i for i in paymer ion 2.5 27 23 27 23 2.7 23 27 2.3 27 2.3 27 23 27 z3 27 23 27 23 27
Digcount rate for scheme liabiliies a7 28 2.7 2.6 27 2.6 27 28 2.7 26 27 28 a7 26 27 2.8 27 26 237 26
Inflation assumption (CPI} 23 28 23 28 23 2.6 23 28 2.3 2.6 23 28 23 28 23 28 23 28 23 28

Commutation
“The current mertality assumptions include sufficient zllowance for future imprevements in motality rates. The assumed Hfe
expectations en refirement age 55 are:

Retiring today:

Males 223 222 223 22 223 222 22.3 222 223 2.2 223 222 2.3 222 n3 222 2.2 22 223 2.2
Females 248 247 24.8 247 248 247 248 247 24.8 24.7 248 24.7 248 24.7 248 247 248 24.7 24.8 247
Retiring in 20 years:

Mates 245 243 245 243 245 24.3 24,5 243 245 243 245 243 245 243 24.5 243 2435 243 24,5 243
Females 271 27 21 27 271 ¥ 2741 27 271 27 27.1 27 27 27 271 27 27 2 274 27.0
Asset spiit (361

Equities 64.0 a5.0 64.0 850 64.0 5.0 540 65.0 4.0 85.0 64.0 65.0 64.0 55.0 64.0 65.0 64.0 85.0 84.00 6500
Property 9.0 100 8.0 108 2.0 10.0 9.0 100 8.0 0.0 9.0 10.0 a.e 10,0 9.0 10.0 2.0 16.0 8.00 10.00
Government bonds 50 8.0 5.0 &0 50 6.0 3.0 6.0 5.0 6.0 5.0 8.0 5.8 B0 5.8 8.0 5.0 6.0 5.00 8.00
Cotporate bonds 6.0 40 8.0 49 .0 a0 8.0 40 6.0 4.0 8.0 4.0 8.0 4.0 6.0 4.0 80 4.0 E.00 4.00
Other 130 128 1350 124 13.0 12.0 13.0 120 13.0 12.0 13.0 12.0 130 120 13.0 120 13.0 120 13.00 12.00
Cash 340 20 3.0 34 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 30 30 30 3.0 3 a0 20 3.00 3.00
Total market value of assets 1000 1000 1000 1000 100.¢ 1000 1000 1000 100.0 1000 1006 1000 1000 1000 100.0 1000 1000 100.0 160.0 100.0
Fair Value of fund assets 465 304 88 34 133 134 406 332 107 61 ™ 618 SEB 448 768 652 373 302 3,690 2,884
Present value of the defined benaefit sbligation {1.104) {1.653) {140) (61} (483) (480} (96T} (945} sty (1o8) 1,823) {1754 {1.275) {1,225} {1971} 2001} 284} 865 {8,808} 8,472}
Net gefined benefit pension lability (699)  (748) (52} 27) {300)  (326) {561) (613} {54) 47} {1.032) {1.136) {707 {779) {1,202} {1348) (511 {683) {5,118} (5,588}
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Sir Martin
Camulos Chigwell Froblaher Woter Lane
Burrsville Infant Primary Primary Kirby Primary Pemberley Purflest Primary Primary Linity Primary PHmary
Academy Academy Academy Academy Academy Academy Academy Academy Academy Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 20017 018 2m7 2018 207 208 2017 2018 2017 2mg 2007 2018 2017 2018 2017
Tetal E R Ised In the tof
Financial Activities
Current service cost {net of employee contributions) 137 1285 B3 56 70 g5 83 7o 69 48 230 172 194 200 207 203 B2 80 1,171 963
Financing cost
Interest on net defined benefit iabilityffasset) 19 16 - - § 11 16 17 1 - 28 27 19 15 34 32 14 13 138 131
Total operating charge 156 141 B3 56 78 75 109 87 70 48 258 189 213 215 241 235 102 83 1,310 1.084
Atalysis of Penslon Finance Income
Interest income oh assets 9 5 2 4 2 9 8 2 1 18 10 12 8 18 11 -3 B a4 48
Interest on pension liabilities (28) _ 21) ) 42 (25) @23 o3 o) 45 3 (32) (23 52) {4y 23 (s (223)  (177),
Pension finance income/ (costs) {19) {18} - - {8} {9) (15} (17} {1) - (28) 27} (18} (15} (34) {32) (T4} (13} {133} (12_92.
Net movement on assets and labilities
Bffwd balance 1 September 2017 (749} (784) (27) - (326) (447) (Bt (203} an {17} {1,136) (1,262) 778) - (1,348) (1,530} {563)  (585) (3.588) (5422)
Innerited on transfer/merger - - - - - (718) - - - {718)
Employer sontribution 82 55 40 24 32 2 49 28 32 23 109 a3 78 75 100 a3 39 30 542 444
Current service sast (137} (125) (83} (56} (70) {85) (83) {70} {899 (48) (230)  (172) (184) (200} {07 {203) (88} {80) (1171 (.09
Interest expense (28) (21) @) (12) {11} (25) 25 &3] 1 {48) {37) {32y (23} {52) {43) (23) (8 (22 {173
Interest income an assets b4 -3 2 4 2 ] & 2 (m 18 10 13 8 18 11 ] 5 B4 A5
Actuarial gainsi{losses) 144 121 18 5 71 187 112 248 E2l (&) 253 242 207 79 287 324 115 13 1238 1.256
Deficit at 31 August 2018 (639} (74%) 52) (27 (300) (326} I CE) {54 4h {1,032y (1.135) (707) _ {77%) {1,202) (1,248} (511)  (563) ($.118) _ (5.588)
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20 ard Simllar i
Sir Martin
Camulos Chlgwell Froblaher Water Lane
Burrsville Infant Primary Primary Kirby Primary Pemberley Puyrfieet Primary Frimary Unity Primary Primary
Academy Azadermy Acadeny Academy Acadetny Academy Academy Academy Academy Total
eolg 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2m7 208 2M17 Mg 017 2018 2017
Movement In the present value of defined benefit
cbligatlons:
Bffwd balance 1 Septemirer 2017 1.053 958 61 - 460 517 945 1.052 108 40 1754 1683 1,225 1,049 2,001 1,882 265 797 8,411 8,042
Inheritad on transfec/merger - . - - - - - . - _
Current service cost 137 125 83 56 70 85 93 TQ 69 48 230 172 184 200 207 203 &8 &n 1,171 a53
Interest cost 28 21 2 - 12 1t 25 23 3 1 46 37 ks 23 52 43 23 18 223 177
Employee contributions 19 18 ic T 2 4 13 B E 7 33 30 23 23 28 28 11 " 188 134
Actuarial Losses / (Gains) (131 (87 (16} tz) 5 (129 (1o0) (188 @28} 12 @28 (154 “sm 34 262) (222 103) @ (1,124) {843}
Benefits paid =) (2) ] 3} 19 {10 - 1y (14 © 38 (39) &3] - (89} 63}
At 31 August 2018 1,104 1,063 140 61 483 460 867 945 151 108 1.823 1,754 1,275 1,225 1,971 2,001 834 865 8,747 8411
Movement in the fair value of fund assets:
Bifwd balance 1 September 2047 304 174 34 - 134 % 332 243 &1 23 618 421 446 3 653 422 302 212 2,850 1.908
Inherited on transfer/merger - - - - - - - - - - -
[nterest on assets g 5] 2 - 4 4 2 -1 4 1 18 10 13 8 i) 11 L] 5 B4 48
Remeasurements gains / (losses) 13 54 4 3 & 18 12 sa 3 7 24 a3 17 45 25 102 12 44 114 408
Employer contributions. 62 55 40 24 23 32 49 29 3z 23 108 83 8 75 190 93 38 20 542 420
Employee contributions 19 18 1c 7 9 3 13 e 8 7 33 20 23 23 28 28 Lk 11 153 134
Baneflss paic @ @ o @ o g - a1y 4 ® 8 [EL R - ) (68
At 31 August 2018 405 304 88 34 183 134 406 332 107 61 791 E18 568 445 765 853 373 302 3,656 2,850
Actual return on assats: 22 39 4 3 18 z0 21 56 5 [ 42 88 o] 33 43 113 21 49 198 456
History of experiencs gains and losses:
Experience gains and {losses) on assels
Amount 13 54 2 3 3 18 12 50 3 7 24 :1:1 17 45 25 102 12 44 114 408
Percentage of assats 32% 17.8% 23% B8.8% 3.3% 134% 0%  154% 28% 115% 0% 14.2% 3.0%  10.1% 33% 158% 3.2% 30 3.1% 14.2%
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Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

Kent County Council Pension Fund

Principal Actuarial Assumptions {%) 2018 2017

Rate of increase in salaries 3.8 4.2
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentfinfiation 2.3 2.7
[scount rate for scheme liabilities . 2.7 2.6
Inflation assumption (CPI} 2.3 2.7

Commutation

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed |ife expeclations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today:
Males 23.1 23.0
Females 252 251

Retiring in 20 years:

Males 253 252
Females 27.5 27.4

Asset split (%):

Equities 68.0 70.0
Property 12.0 12.0
Government bonds 1.0 1.0
Caorporate bonds 9.0 10.0
Other 7.0 4.0
Cash 3.0 3.0
Total market value of assets 100.0 100.0
Fair Value of fund assets 4,331 3,750
Present value of the defined benefit obligation {7,951 (7.221)
Net defined benefit pension liability {3,020y  (3,471)

Total Expenditure Recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities

Current service cost {net of employee

contributions) 782 796
Adminsitration expenses 2 2
Financing cost

Interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset) 85 101
Pension Expense 869 899
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Pension and Similar Obligations {continued)

Analysis of Pension Finance Income

Interest income on assets
Interest cost on pension liabilities
Pension finance income/ (cosis)

Net movement on assets and fiabilities

BAwd balance 1 September 2017
Inherited on transfer/merger
Employer contribution

Current service cost

Past service cost

interest expense

interest income on assets
Actuarial galns/(losses)

Deficit at 31 August 2018

Movement in the present value of defined
benefit obligations:

B/fwd balance 1 September 2017

Inharited on transfer/merger
Current service cost
Irterest cost

Employee confributions
Actuarial {gain)/ loss
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018

Movement in the fair value of fund assets:
B/fwd balance 1 September 2017

Inherited on mergerftransfer

Interest on income

Administration expenses

Remeasuremenis gains/ (losses)

Employer contributions

Employee contributions

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018

Actual return on assets:

Experience gains and losses on assets
Amount
Percentage of assets

89

2018

103
(188)
(85)

{3,471)

368
(782)

(188)
103
950

(3,020}

7,221

782
188
105

(879)
{66)

7,351

3,750

103
(2)
73

368

105

(66)

4,331

176

73
1.7%

2017

64
(168)
(107)

(4,733)
332
(796)
(165)
64
1,827

(3,471}

7,462

796
165

g7
(1,267)
(32}

7,221

2,729

64
2}
562
332
97
(32)

3,750

626

562
15.0%
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Pension and Similar Obligations {(continued)

Royal County Council of Berkshire Pension Fund

Total
Principal Actuarial Assumptions (%) 2018 2017
Rate of increase in salaries 3.8 4.2
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentfinflation 23 2.7
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.7 26
Inflation assumption (CPI) 23 27
Commutation
The current mortality assumptions inciude sufficient allowance for future
improvements in motality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement
Retiring today:
Males 231 23.0
Females 25.2 25.1
Retiring in 20 years:
Males 253 25.2
Females 275 274
Asset split (%):
Equities 47.06 50.0
Property 14.0 14.0
Government bonds -
Corporate bonds 15.0 16.0
Other 9.0 8.0
Cash 156.0 12.0
Total market value of assets 100.0 100.0
Fair Value of fund assets 1,002 782
Prasent value of the defined benefit obligation {2,460) {2,400)
Net defined benefit pension liability (1,458) {1,827)
Total Expenditure Recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities
Current service cost {net of employee
contributions) 325 347
Financing cost
Interest on net defined benefit liabifity/{asset) 41 29
Pension expense 366 376
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For the year ended 31 August 2018

Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

Analysis of Pension Finance Income

Expected return on pension scheme assets
Interest on pension liabilities
Pension finance costs

Net movement on assets and liabilities

Bifwd balance 1 September 2017
Inherited on transfer/merger
Employer contribution

Current service cost

Interest expense

Interest income on assels
Actuarial gains/{losses)

Deficit at 31 August 2018

Movement in the present value of defined
benefit obligations:

Bffwd balance 1 September 2017
Inherited on transfer/merger
Current sarvice cost

Interest expense

Employee contributions

Actuarial Gains / (losses)

At 31 August 2018

Movement in the fair value of fund assets:
Bifwd balance 1 September 2017

Inherited on transfer/merger

Interest on income

Remeasurement Gains / (Losses)

Employer contributions

Employee contributions

At 31 August 2018

Actual return on assets:

71

23 16

(63) (44}

(40) {28}
Total Total

2018 2017

(1,627) (1,322

140 130

(325) {347)

{63) (44)

23 16

394 (60}

{1,458) (1,627)

2,409 2,040

325 347

63 44

44 45

{381) (67)

2,460 2,408

782 718

23 16

13 (127)

140 130

44 45

1,002 782

36 (111)
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For the year ended 31 August 2018

Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)
History of experience gains and losses:
Experience gains and losses on assets

Amount 13
Percentage of assets 1.3%

72

(127)
(16.2%)
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Netes to the Firancial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2015

20 Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

West Mictands Pension Fund

Bushbury Lane Primary WManor Park Primary
Academy Academy Moeor Green Primary Academy Total
Principal Actuarial Assumptions (36) 2018 2047 2018 207 2os 2017 2018 2017
Rate of increase in salaries 3.8 4.2 3.8 42 3.8 4.2 38 4.2
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.3 2.7 2.3 2.7 2.3 27 23 2.7
Discount rate for scheme labifities 2.7 2.6 27 26 27 26 27 26
irflation assumption {CP1) 2.3 2.7 2.3 27 2.3 =7 23 2.7

Commutation

The current mortakty assumptions inchude sutficient allowance for fuhure improvements in motality rates, The assumed life expectations on retirement age
B85 are:

Retiring today:
Majes 219 21.8 21.8 218 21.8 21.8 218 21.8
Females 24.4 24.3 2¢4.4 243 24.4 243 24.4 24.2

Reliring in 20 years:

Males 249 24.0 241 2490 24.1 24.0 24.1 24.0
Females 28.7 26.6 28.7 266 28,7 266 25.7 26.6
Asset split (%):

Equities 3.0 £3.0 83.0 83.0 63.0 63.0 . 63.0 B3.0
Property 8.0 7.0 8.0 7.0 8.0 7.0 8.0 7.0
Govemnment bonds 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Corporate bonds 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0
Other 14.0 14,0 14,0 14,0 4.0 14.0 140 14.0
Cash 4.0 5.0 4.0 5.0 4.0 5.0 4.0 5.0
Total market value of assets 100.0 100.0 100.0 106.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Fair Value of fund assets a7 56 431 252 566 489 1,084 s
Present vaiue of the defined benefit obligation {4589} {459y (2,020} (1,958 (1,457 (1,483} {3,966) {3,880}
Net defined benefit pension {iability {392) (403} {1,589) (1,706) {891) (374} {2,872) (3,083)

Total Expenditure Recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities

Current service cost (net of employee

contributions) 65 36 243 242 137 133 448 411
Financing cost

Interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset) 10 4 42 35 24 8 73 47
FPension expense 75 40 285 277 161 141 522 458

Analysis of Pension Finance Income

Expected retum on pensian scheme assels 2 1 g9 4 14 B 25 2
Interest oh pension liabilities {12y (5) {51) {39 {38} (18) (161 B0
Pensicn finance costs (10} (4) {42) {35} {24y {8) (76) {47}
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Pensicn and Similar Obligations {continued)

Bushbury Lane Primary Manor Park Primary

Academy Academy Mocr Green Primary Academy Total

2018 207 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Net movement on assets and liabilities
Bffwd batance 1 September 2017 (403) - (1,708) (1,662 @74) {392) 3,083 (2.084)
Inherited on transfer/merger {2364) - - - {364y
Empleyer contribution 33 22 154 107 59 59 248 188
Current service cost {66} (36) (243) {242) {137} {133) (448} [CRN}]
Interest expense (12 <] [38) (39) (38} {16) (101 B0
Interest income on assets z 1 8 4 14 8 25 132
Actuarial gains/{lesses) 54 @n 245 126 85 {500) 487 (395}
Deficit 2t 31 August 2018 {392) {403) {1,588) {1,708} {831) {874) (2,872) {3,083}
Movement in the present value of defined
bBanefit ebligations:
Bifwd balance 1 September 2017 45¢ - 1,958 1,761 1,483 736 3880 2,487
Inherited on transfer/merger 380 - - - 390
Current service cost 66 26 243 242 137 133 446 411
Interest expense 1z 5 51 39 3B 18 101 B0
Employee contribytions & 23 36 38 20 22 84 23
Benefils net of transfers in 5 (15) {8} ] (24) (2
Actuarial Gains / (lasses) 56) (253) (122) (192} 583 (501) 441
At 31 August 2018 489 453 2,020 1,858 1,457 1.483 3,866 3,880
Movement in the fair value of fund assets:
Bffwd balance 1 September 2017 56 - 252 a9 489 344 797 443
Inhetited on transfermerger 28 - - - 26
Interest on income: 2 1 9 4 14 e 25 13
Remeasurement Gains / (Losses) 2 2 (5} 4 o) 83 (14} &9
Empicyer contributions 32 22 154 107 59 58 248 188
Employee contributions 8 5 36 38 20 22 64 [
Benefits net of transfers in (18} ) 6] (24} 8]
At 31 August 2018 S7 56 431 252 565 480 1,004 797
Actizgl return on assets: - 3 4 8 7 71 11 a2
History of experience gains and [osses:
Experience gains and losses on assels
Amount {23 2 {s) 4 ] 53 (14} 69
Percentage of assels {2.1%} 38% (1.2%) 1.6% (1.2%:) 12.9% (1.2%;) 8.7%
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Pension and Simitar Obligations (continued)

Hertfordshire County Council Pension Fund

Princlpal Actuariat Assumptions (%}

Rale of increasein salaries

Rate of increase for pensions in paymentinflation

Discount rate for scheme #abililies
Inflation assumption (CP{}

Commutation

REACHZ ACADEMY TRUST

Notes to the Firancial Statements

For the year ended 31 August 2018

Wilshire Dacre Jurter

The current mortality assumptions inciude sufficient allowance for fulure improvements in moetality rates, The assumed life

axpectations on ratiramant age 65 are:

Retiring today:
Males
Females

Retiring in 20 years:
Males
Females

Asset spiit (%):

Equities

Froperly

Government bonds
Carparate bonds

Other

Cash

Total markel value of assels

Fair Value of fund assets
Prasent value of the defined benefit okligation
Net dafined benefit pension liability

fctal Expenditure Recognlsed In the
Statement of Financiat Activities

Current service cost (net of employee
contributions)

Firancing cost

interest an net defined benefit liabilty/assat)

Pension expense
Analysis of Pension Finance Incema
Expected retum on pension schema assats

interest on pension Habilities
Pension finance costs

Garden City Academy Academy Total

2618 2017 2018 2017 2018 217
24 38 25 2.5 2.5 341
23 21 24 2.4 2.4 2.3
28 2.1 28 25 28 23
2.3 20 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.2
225 225 225 22.5 22.5 225
249 249 24.9 249 249 249
24.1 24,1 241 241 241 249
267 287 26.7 26.7 26.7 6.7
53.0 B5.0 53.0 65.0 53.0 65.0
8.0 7.0 80 7.0 80 7.0
350 25.0 35.0 25.0 36.0 25.0
4.0 3.0 4.0 3.0 4.0 3.0
100.0 100.0 100,0 100.0 100.0 100.0
586 488 558 494 1,444 982
(814} (757) (818} (767) (1.632) (1.524)
(228) (269) (260) (273) (488) (543)
123 104 81 68 204 172
8 8 7 8 15 16
131 12 8 76 219 188
13 9 13 8 26 17
(21) {17) {20} {16) (41} (33)
i8) (8) 04 (8) 08 (16)
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Pension and Simllar Obfigations {continued)

Net movement on assets and liabilities

Bhwd balanca 1 September 2017
Inhented on transfer!merger
Employer contribution

Current service cosl

Interest expense

Interest income on assets
Acluariai gainsi{losses)

Deticit at 31 August 2018

Movement in the present value of defined
henefit obligations:

Bifwd balance 1 September 2017
Inherited on transfer/imerger
Current service cost

Interest expense

Empiayee contributions

Benafits net of ransfers in

Acluarial Gains / (losses)

At 31 August 2018

Movement in the fair value of fund assets:

Bffwd balance 1 September 2017
inherited an lransfer/marger
interest on income
Remeasurement Gains / {Lossas)
Employer contributions

Employee contribulions

Benefits net of transfers in

At 31 August 2018

Actust return on assets:
History of experience galns and losses:
Experience gains and losses on assets

Amount
Percentage of assels

REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2018

Garden City Academy Wilshire Dacre Junior Totat

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2047
{269) (373) (273) (344) {542) {717)
75 73 48 43 122 116
{123} (104} (81} (68) {204) {172)
21y (17 (20} (16} 41) (33)
13 9 13 & 26 17
a7 143 53 104 150 247
(228) (269} (260) (273) (488) (542)
757 774 67 745 1,524 1519
123 104 81 68 204 172
el 17 20 16 41 33
i7 18 11 10 28 28
(3) (2} @) (6) 6] {8
(101} (152)- (59) (68) (160) {219)
814 757 818 767 1,632 1,524
469 401 494 401 982 802
13 9 13 8 26 17
15 (9 (6) 38 g 29
75 73 48 43 123 116
17 16 11 10 28 26
[©)] 2 ] ) 5 8
588 488 558 494 1,163 982
28 - 7 46 35 48
15 (9} (6). 38 g 2
2.6% (1.8%) {1.1%) 7.7% 0.8% 3.0%
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20 Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

London Borough ot Barking and Dagenham Pension Fund

Principal Actuarial Assumptions (%} 2018 2017

Rate of increase in salaries 2.8 29
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.3 24
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.8 2.5
Inflation assumptian {CPT) 2.3 2.7

Commutation

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expeciations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today:
[ Males ‘ 22.0 22.0
Females 247 247

Retiring in 20 years:
| Males 24.0 240
Females 26.4 26,4

Asset split (%}):

| Equities 750 750
Property 6.0 8.0
Gavernment bonds 17.0 18.0
Cash 2.0 -
Total market vahse of assets 100.0 100.0
Fair Value ¢f fund assets - 1,303 1,118
Present value of the defined benefit obligation (1,607)  (1,488)
% Net defined benefit pension liability {304) (370)
|

Total Expenditure Recognised in the

Staternent of Finandial Activities \
Operating cost

Current service cost {net of employee

contributions) 247 170

Financing cost

Interest on net defined benefit liability{asset) 12 14

Pension expense 259 184
2018 2017

Analysis of Pension Finance Income

Interest income on assets 29 16
Interest on pension liabilities (41) {30)
Pansion finance costs {12) (14)
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REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2018

Pensicn and Similar Obligations (continued)

Net movement on assets and liabilities

B/fwd balance 1 September 2017
Inherited on transfer/merger
Employer contribution

Curreni service cost

Past service cost

Interest expense

Interest income on assets
Actuarial ffosses) / gains

Deficit at 31 August 2018

Movement in the present value of defined
benefit obligations:

Bffwd balance 1 September 2017
Inherited an transfer/merger
Current service cost

interest expense

Employee contributions

Actuarial (gains)/ losses

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018

Movement in the fair value of fund assets:

B/wd balance 1 September 2017
Inherited an transferimerger
Interest an assets
Remeasurement gains/ (losses)
Employer contributions
Employee contributions

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018

Actual return on assets:
History of experlence gains and losses:
Experience gains and losses on assels

Amaount
Perceniage of assets

{370}

104
(247)

{41
29
221

{304)

1,488

247
41
33

{191}

(t1)

1,607

1,118
29
30

104
33

(an

1,303

59

2.3%

78

(649)

94
(170)

{30)
18
369

(370)

1,346

170
30
30

{79)

{11

1,488

609

16
290
94
30

{1

1,118

306

290
25.9%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2028

20 Pension and Similar Okligations {continued)

Croydon Pension Fund

Aerodrome

Primary Castle Hill Robert Fitzroy 51 Marks GOFE

Asademy Acadenmy Acad Acadery Total
Principat Actirarial Assumptions (%) 2018 2017 20ta 2017 2018 2017 218 267 2018 2047
Rate of Increase in salaries 28 238 29 2.8 28 29 29 28 29
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentfinflatlon 23 24 2.4 23 24 24 24 23 24
Distount rate for scheme Fabliges 28 25 25 28 25 24 25 27 25
Inflatian assumption {CPl) 23 24 24 22 24 23 2.4 23 24
Commutatian
The current morlglhity assumphions inciude sufficient allowance for fitture impravements
in motalily rates.  The 3 life tations on reti age 85 are:
Hetiring today:
Males 223 223 223 223 223 223 223 2230 223
Females 24,4 244 244 244 244 244 244 2440 244
Hetiring in 2 years:
Mates 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 2400 240
Femates 262 28.2 28.2 26,2 262 %2 26.2 26.20 262
Asset aplit (%):
Equities 1.0 66,0 62,0 71.0 69.0 e 69.0 H.oe 69.0
Property 120 1.0 130 12.0 110 120 10 12.00 1.0
Government bonds 16.0 170 1.0 16,0 17.0 16.4 7.0 16.00 17.9
Carparate bonds 0.0 0.0 6.0 0.0 00 0.0 LK} 0.00 04
Other 0.0 4.0 X 0.0 2.0 0.0 20 0,00 00
Cash 10 3.0 3.0 1.0 30 1.8 aa .1.60 30
Total market vaiue of assets $000  100.0 04 1000 100.0 1000 100.0 1600 1000 ' 1000
Fair Vatue of fund assets 1,068 a3z - 1,216 486 297 an 238 1,875 2,584
Present value of the defined benefit obligation {1.799) (1,643 - (2,205 (897)  (891) (881)  (608) $317 (5230
Net defined henefit pension liability (731) {811 - (1,078} Aty (394) (360} {364) {1,502)  (2.653)
Total Expenditure Recognised In the Statement of
Financial Activities
Current service cost {net of employee contributions) 285 273 4] 354 an 280 102 8 288 894
Financing cost
Interest o net defined benefit liabilityassel 22 20 Q 28 13 11 10 a9 45 &9
“Total operating charge 07 208 - 383 314 291 112 90 733 3,062
Analysis of Pension Finance income
Interestincome on assels 23 17 - 23 ] 7 7 4 39 51
Interest on pension liabiities {45) {an - (52) (23 {8 (17} {13 {84) {120)
Pension finance income/ {casts) {22) {20) - {29) {13) (11} {16) {9) {45) {E9)

7%
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Notes to the Financia Statements
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20 Pension and Simllar Obligations {continized}

Aerodrome St Marks Church
Psimary Castle HiYl Robert Fitzroy of England
X Academy Academy Academy Primary Total
Net movement on assets and Habilities. 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2047 20t8 2017 2018 2017
8/fwd balance 1 September 2017 @11 (g84) (5,079} {1,358) @o4) @29 (369)  (434) (2853)  (3.009)
Inherled on translotimergar - 1079 - - - 1.07¢ -
Employer conlribution 124 115 - 180 145 83 52 59 L] 437
Curent service cost 285 @19 - (354 @301y (280} (102 (81 (688) (@04
Interest expanse {45) (30 (52) (22) {18y {37 (13} (84) (120)
Interest inconne on assels 23 17 z3 g 7 7 4 39 51
Actuarial gains/(losses) 263 257 482 182 237 83 8 514 1.072
Dreticit at 31 August 2018 T3y (8l1) ~(1,079) @ity (384 (360) (360 {1502 (2,853)
Movement [n the present value of defined benefit
olligations:
Bfiwd balance 1 September 2017 1643 1812 2,285 2,385 891 13 08 03 5237 5312
Inherited on translarimarger - {2,295) - - - {2,285) -
Current service cost 285 279 354 a0 280 102 &1 688 894
Interest cost 45 a7 52 22 18 17 13 84 120
Employaa contrbuliens H 42 54 42 42 4 12 57 150
Acluatial Losses / (Gains} (208) (324) {548} 159 (362 [62)] (99) 420 (1,333
Benafils paid uyl )] [ed] - 7] @ {14) @
At 31 August 2G18 1,799 1,643 - 2,2!“;3. 897 €91 631 508 3377 5,237
Movement In the fair vatue of fund assets;
Bifwd batance 1 September 2017 a3z 728 1216 1,027 297 29% 239 169 2,584 2,214
inhetlted on lransferfmerger - (1,218) - - - {1,218} -
interest on assets 23 17 23 ] 7 7 4 39 5%
Remeasurements gains / (losses) 55 (314 (66) 23 {125 16 {3 a4 {261)
Employer canlibutions 124 118 180 115 83 52 59 291 437
Employee cenlibutions 45 42 54 42 42 14 12 P 150
Benefits paid (o] @ @ - o 2 (14) &
At 31 August 2018 1,068 8§32 - 1,218 486 207 321 239 1,875 2,584
Actual tetlirn on assets: 78 (50} - (43) 32 (118 23 1 33 (210}
History of experience gains and losses:
Experience gains and (losses) o asssls
Amount 5 @0 - (88) 23 {25 18 3 o (261)
Percentags of assels 51%  (B.1%) (9.4%) 4.7% (42.4%) 50% (1.3%) 5:0% (10.1%)
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20 Pensian and Similar Okligations (centinued}

London Borough of Havering Pension Fund

Langtons Junlor Cencordla Primary Total
Academy Academy
Principal Actuarlal Assumptions (%) 2018 2017 2018 017 2018 207
Rate of increase in sataries 2,7 27 26 27 286 27
Rate of increase far pensions in paymentinfiation 2.4 2.4 23 2.4 23 24
Discaunt rate far scheme liabiliies 2.8 2.5 2.8 25 2.8 2.5
Inflalian assumption {C#l) 2.4 23 24

Commutation

The currant mortality 2ssumplions include sufficient allowance for future improvemenls in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age

&5 are:

Redtiring today:

Males 22 22 22 22 22 22
Famales 24.2 242 24.2 24.2 24,2 24,2

Retiring in 20 years:

Males 239 2349 239" 239 239 238
Females 263 263 263 26.2 263 26.3
Agset sphit {%):

Equilies 52 750 52 75.0 52 75.0
Propery 8 6.0 8 8.0 3 6.0
Gavamment bands 28 170 28 17.0 28 7.0
Cash 12 29 12 2.0 12 2.0
Tota! market valua of assals 100.0  100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Fair Value of fund assets 770 574 24 7 794 641
Present value of the defined benefit abligation {830) (863} (35) {(13) (965) {876)
Net defined benefit pension ligbility {160) (188} (11) {6) {171) {195)

Tatat Expenditure Recognised inthe
Statement of Financlal Activities
Operating cost

Current service cost {net of employes

contribulions) 99 a8 26 12 125 110
Finanging cost

interest on net defined benefit BabilityXasset) 5 9 - B 9
Pension expense 104 107 26 12 430 119

Analysis of Penslon Finance Income

Interest income on assels 18 12 - - 18 12
Interast on pansion lfabiltias (23) (21) [4}] - (24) £21)
Pension finance costs () (9 {1 - ) ©
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Penslon and Similar Ghligations {condinued)

Net movement on agsets and Habllittes

Bifaad balance 1 Saptamber 2017
Inferiled on iransferimerger
Employer contribulion

Currend servica cosl

Past service cost

Interest expense

fnterest income on assets
Actuarial {losses)  gains

Beficit at 31 August 2018

Movement In the present value of defined
benelit obEgations:

Bifwd balance 1 Seplember 2017
inherited on transfer/margar
Current service cost

Interosi expensa

Employae conlibulions

Actuarial (gains)/ fosses

Benefits paid

AL 31 August 2018

Movement in the fair value of fund assets:

Bifwd balance {1 September 2017
Inherited on transferimerger
Intaresl on assels
Remeasuremen gainsf {losses}
Employear conlributians
Employee conlribulions

Benefits paid

Al 31 August 2018

Actual retarn on assets:
History of experlence gains and losses:
Exparience gains and fosses an assals

Amount
Percantage of assels

REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

Notes 1o the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Augusi 2018

(188) (428 (6} - ($05)  (425)
53 51 12 5 65 56
(99  (@8) (26) (12) (128) (110
{23} (21} Q)] - (24) (21
18 2 - - 18 12
sa 292 10 1 90 293
(160y (180} 1) ) 71y (195
863 1,003 13 - 876 1003
99 a8 26 12 125 10
23 2 1 - 24 21
14 12 4 2 18 14
(65) (267 {9) (1} 74) (268)
4} ) - - (4) “)
930 863 35 13 965 576
674 578 7 - 681 578
18 12 - - 18 12
15 25 1 - 18 25
53 51 12 5 65 56
14 12 4 2 18 14
O] (4) - @ @)
770 674 24 7 794 G81
33 37 1 - a4 37
15 25 1 - 16 25
18%  3,7% 42%  00% 20%  37%
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20 Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

London Brough of Lewisham

Principal Actuarial Assumptions (%) 2018 2017

Rate of increase in salaries 3.0 3.1
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/infiation 2.3 2.5
Discouny rate for scheme liabilities 2.8 2.4
Inflation assumption (CPI) 23 2.3

Commutation

The current moriality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectaticns on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today:
Males 222 222
Femates 248 24.8

Retiring in 20 years:

Males 24.0 24.0
Females 26.5 26.5

Asset split (%):

Equities 60,0 64,0
Property 8.0 8.0
Government bonds 24.0 19.0
Cash 8.0 9.0
Total market value of assets 100.0 100.0
Fair Value of fund assets 1,578 1,299
Present value of the defined benefit obligation (2,625)  (2,521)
Net defined benefit pension liability (1,047)  (1,222)

Total Expenditure Recognised in the
Statement of Financtal Activities
Operaling cost

Current service cost {net of employee

contributions) 309 285
Financing cost

Interest on net defined benefit liability/{asset) 32 34
Pension expense 341 319
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Analysis of Pension Finance Income

[nterest income on assets
Interest on pension liabilities
Pension finance costs

Pension and Sintilar Obligations (continued)
Net movement on assels and liabilities

B/fwd balance  September 2017
Inherited on transferfimerger
Employer contribution:

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest expense

Interest incame on assets
Actuarial {losses) / gains

Deficit at 31 August 2018

Movement in the present value of defined
benefit obligations:

Bifwd balance 1 September 2017
Inhearited on fransfer/merger
Current service cost

Interest expense

Employee conkibutions

Actuarial {gains) losses

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018

Movement in the fair value of fund assets:
B/fwd balance 1 September 2017

Inherited on {ransfer/merger

Interest on assets

Remeasurement gains/ {losses)

Employer contributions

Employee contributions

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018

Actual return on assels:
History of expertlence gains and losses:
Experience gains and losses on assels

Amaunt
Percentage of assets

2018

35
(67)
(32

(1,222)

166
(309)

{67)
35
350

{1,047}

2,524
309
57
47
(317)
(2}

2,625

1,299

35
33
168
47

1,578

88

33
21%

84

2017

22
(56)
(34

(1,578)

143
(285}

(56}
22
532

{1,222)

2,512
285
56
47
(377)
2

2,521

834

22
155
143

(2}

1,288

177

155
11.9%
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20 Pension and SimHar Obligations (continued)

London Borough of Barnet

Total
Principal Actuarial Assumptions (%) 2018 2017
Rate of increase in salaries 26 N/A
Rate of increase for pensians in paymentfinflation 23 N/A
Discount rate for scheme liab#ities 2.8 NA
inflation assumption (CP1} 23 NA
Commutation
The current mertality assumptions include sufficient
allowance for future improvements in motaiity rates,
The assumed life expectations an retirement age 65
are:
Retiring today:
Males 219 NIA
Females 24.3 N/A
Retfiring in 20 years:
Males 239 NIA
Females 26.5 N/A
Asset split (%)
Equities 58.¢0 N/A
Property 0.00 N/A
Bonds 30.00 N/A
Cash 12.00 NfA,
Total market value of assets 100.0 0.0
Fair Value of fund assets 173 -
Present value of the defined benefit abligation (987) -
Net defined benefit pension liability (814) -
Total Expenditure Recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities
Current service cost (net of employee contributions) 230
Flnancing cost )
Interest on net defined benefit liability/{asset) 22
Total operating charge 252 -
Analysis of Pension Finance income
Interest income on assets 2 -
Interest on pension lizbifities (24) -
Pension finance income/ {costs) (22) -
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20 Pension and Simllar Obllgaticns (continued)

. Total
Net movement on assets and liablilties 2018 2017
Bffwd balance 1 September 2017 - -
Inherited on transfer/merger {837) -
Employer contribution ’ 138 -
Current service cost {230} -
interest expense {24} -
Interest income on assets 2 -
Actuarial gains/(losses) 137 -
Deficit at 31 August 2018 (814) -
Movement in the present value of defined benefit
obligations:
Bifwd balance 1 September 2017 - -
Inherited on transfer/merger 837 -
Current service cost 230 -
Interest cost . 24 -
Employeea contributions 32 -
Acluaria Lossas / {Gains} (138) -
Benefits paid -
At 31 August 2018 987 -

Movement in the fair value of fund assets:
Bifwd batance 1 September 2017 -
Inherited on transfer/merger

Interest on assets 2
Remeasurements gains / (losses) 1

Employer contriputions 138

Employee confributions 32

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018 173 -
Actual return on assets: 3 -

History of experience gains and losses:
Experience gains and (losses) on assets

Armount 1 -
Percentage of assets 0.6% 0.0%
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20 Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

Staftordshire

Total
Principal Actuarial Assumptions (%) 2018 2017
Rate of increase in salaries 2.7 2.8
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 23 2.4
Discount rate for scheme liabiities 28 2.5
Inflation assumption (CPI} 23 2.4
Commutation
The current mortality assumptions include sufficient
allowance for future improvements in motality rates.
The assumed life expectations an retirement age 65
are:
Retiring today:
Maies 221 221
Femates 24.4 24.4
Retiring in 20 years:
Males 24.1 241
Females 26.4 26.4
Asset spiit {%):
Equities 70 76
Property 8 8
Government bonds 19 12
Carporate bonds 4] 0
Other 0 0
Cash 3 4
Total market value of assets 100 100
Fair Value of fund assets 2,945 2,335
Present value of the defined benefit obligation (4,893) (4,531)
Net defined benefit pension lability (1,948) (2,196)
Total Expenditure Recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities
Current service cost {net of employee contributions) 729 604
Financing cost ’
Interest on net dafined benefit liahility/(asset) 59 4
Totat operating charge 788 608
Analysls of Pension Finance Income
Interest income on assets 64 6
Interest on pension liabilities (123} (19)
Pension finance income/ (costs) (59) (4)
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20 Pension and Simllar Obligations {continued)

Total
Net movement on assets and labilitles 2018 2017
Biwd balance * September 2017 (2,198) (2,194)
Inherited on transfer/merger -
Emplayer contribution 369 331
Current service cost {729) (604)
Interest expense {123} (10)
Interest income on assets 64 4
Actuarial gains/(losses) 667 277
Deficlt at 31 August 2018 (1,948) (2,196)
Movement in the present value of defined benefit
obligations:
B/fwd balance 1 September 2017 4,531 140
Inherited on transferfmerger - -
Current service cost 728 604
Interest cost 123 10,
Employee contriputions 102 92
Actuarial Losses / (Gains) (560) 3,720
Benefils pald (32) {35)
At 31 August 2018 4,893 4,531
Movement in the fair value of fund assets:
Bffwd balance 1 September 2017 2,335 59
Inhesited on fransfer/imerger -
Interest on assets 64 6
Remeasuremenis gains / (fosses) 107 1,842
Emptoyer contributions 369 331
Emptoyee contributions 102 92
Benefits paid {32) (35)
At 31 August 2018 2,945 2,335
Actual return on assets: 171 1,842
History of experience gains and losses:
Experience gains and {losses) on assets
Amount 107 5,562
Percenlage of assels 3.6% 2382%
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20 Pension and Similar Obligations (continued}

Sutfolk Pension Fund

hartfesham Phoenix 5t Northfield St St Margarets
Beceles Primary Gunton Primary Primary Peter Primary Nicholas Sprites Pimary Primary
Academy Acadamy Asatlemy Academy Primary Academy Academy Total
Principal Actuarial Assumptions (%) 18 2017 2018 2m7 2018 017 2013 2017 2018 2017 2p18 2017 2018 2017 2018 217
Rate of increase in salaries 27 2.7 2.7 27 28 27 26 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentfinflation z4 24 24 24 23 2.4 23 2.4 24 - 24 24 24 24 24 24 2.4
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 28 2.5 2.8 25 2.8 2.5 28 25 ze 2.5 28 25 28 2.5 28 25
tnflation assumption (CPI} 2.4 2.4 24 2.4 23 2.4 23 24 2.4 2.4 2.4 24 24 2.4 24 24
Commutation
The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in motality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:
Retiring today:
Males 218 218 219 21.9 219 218 21.9 21.9 21.8 219 218 218 21.9 218 21.9 21.8
Ferales 24.4 244 24.4 24.4 244 24,4 244 24.4 24.4 244 24.4 24.4 244 24.4 24.4 24.4
Retiring in 20 years:
Males 2389 23.9 23.9 23.9 23.9 23.8 23.9 239 239 239 238 238 38 23.8 23.9 238
Females 264 284 26.4 6.4 26.4 26.4 264 26.4 26.4 26.4 26.4 258.4 26.4 264 26.4 26.4
Asset split (%):
Equities 2.0 68.0 82.0 68.0 862.0 88.0 62.0 68.0 82.0 £8.0 62.0 62.0 62.0 88.0 62.0 B8.0
Praperty 10.0 10,0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 0.0 10,8 10.0 10.0 10.0 0.0
Government bands 27.0 21.0 270 21.0 27.0 210 .0 21.8 270 210 2re 21.0 270 21.0 27.0 21.0
Cash 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 19 1.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.8 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Total market vaiue of assets 100.0 iz 100.0 nfa 160.8 n‘a 100.8 1000 1000 100.0 100.0 1000 1000  100.0 100.0 100.0
Fair Value of fund assets 571 452 649 549 120 & 529 453 1,114 525 926 kil 748 E12 4,657 3,809
Present value of the defined benefit obligation {944) (907} (117 {1114 {70 {150) (831} {677) {1,975y {1,855) 1,415 (1.220) {896 (897 7,371 {8,928)
Net defined benefit pension fiability {373} (415} {524) {565) (57) (64) {162} (224) (861}  {33D0) (479) (534) . {(248) (279) {2,704) ({3,011
Total Expenditure Recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities -
Current service cost (net of employee contributions} 24 81 107 2lo] 37 39 68 70 210 172 145 142 128 124 783 718
Financing cast
Interest on net defined benefit fiability/(asset) " 12 14 17 1 2 & & 24 28 14 16 7 9 77 8B
Total aperating charge 95 93 121 107 38 41 74 78 234 188 159 158 145 133 868 306
Analysis of Pengion Finance Income
Interest income on assets 13 9 15 9 3 1 12 5 25 19 21 12 7 7 108 62
Interest on pension Babilities (24) 21) (29) (28} (4) 3 (18) (11) {49) 45), {35) {28) (24) {i8) {183) {150}
Pension finance income/ {costs) [453] {12} (14} (17 (1) {2) (&) (&) (24) (26) {14) {18} {7 {3) (77} (BB}
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Pension ang Similar Obligations {continued)

Net movement on acgets and iiabilities

Bifwd balance 1 September 2017
inherited an transfer/merger
Employer contribution

Current service cost

Interest expense

Interest income on assels
Actuarial gainsilosses)

Deficit at 31 August 2018

Movement in the present value of defined benefit
ohligations:

B/fwid balance 1 September 2017
Inherited on transfer/merger
Current service cost

Interest cost

Employee conttibutions

Actuarial Losses / ((G3ins)
Benefits paid

A 31 August 2018

Movement in the fair value of fund assets:
B/fwd balance 1 September 2317

Inherited on transfer/merger

interest on assets

Remeasurements gains / (lasses)

Employer contributions

Employee contributions

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018

Actual retiirn on assets:
Histery of experience gains and fosses:
Experience gains and {losses) on assets

Amount
Percentage of assets

REACH2 ACADEMY TRUST

Notes to the Financial Statements.
Fer the year ended 31 August 2018

Northfield St
Wartfesham Phoenix St Nichalas St Margarets
Beccles Primary Gunton Primary Primary Peter Primary Primary Sprites Primary Primary
Academy Acadermy Acad Acad Acadh Academy Academy Total
2018 2017 2018 07 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 27 2018 2017

{415) (558) {565) {818) [(:53] 85 (224} (287 (930) {1,289) {534) (802) 279 (37N {3,011 {(5,218)
54 57 69 1 24 25 44 47 133 121 9 85 89 1] 5180 485
(54) 81 (107} {50) (37} {38} (68) 70y {210) {172) (145) {142) {138) {124) {789) e
(24) 21 29} 26) ) 3 (18 an 49 (45) {38) (28) 24} (18 {183) (150)
13 9 15 9 3 1 12 5 25 19 21 12 17 7 106 B2
83 178 a3 299 21 37 92 82 166 436 118 33 87 142 €63 1.516
(373 (415} (524)  (£65) (57 (64) (162)  (224) (861} (830) (479 (534 (e48y (@79y 2,704 (3,017}
a07 857 1,114 1,249 150 133 B77 507 1855 2,360 1320 1342 847 883 6,820 7,031
84 81 107 90 a7 39 -] 0 210 172 145 142 138 124 T8G 718
24 21 28 28 4 3 128 hEl 48 45 35 28 24 1% 183 150
12 12 15 13 5 5 =] 9 28 24 20 20 19 18 108 101
{70} {158) (79) (248) {19) (30) (G 80 (144) {518) {98} {196) (e )] 67 {567) {998y
% @ (18 . (16} - o - (24) (30) )] (16} an an 59 ©2)
944 907 1473 1,114 177 156 6591 677 1.9¢% 1,855 1,415 1,320 998 897 731 5,920
482 399 548 431 &8 48 453 220 825 871 786 540 818 306 3,809 2,815
13 g 15 9 3 1 12 5 25 19 21 12 17 7 106 62
13 24 14 51 F4 7 12 172 24 (80) 21 138 16 209 102 518
54 57 69 &1 24 25 44 47 135 121 95 a5 89 89 510 495
12 12 15 13 5 5 k] 10 29 24 20 20 18 18 108 102
(13) (2} (13 (18 - O] ) 24 30 1] {16} 1] [th] % {83)
571 492 548 548 120 56 529 453 1,114 0925 936 786 748 618 4,667 3,808
26 24 29 80 S 3 24 177 48 61) 42 147 33 218 208 580
13 24 14 51 2 T 12 172 24 {80} 21 135 16 209 102 518
2.3% 4.8% 2.2% 2.3% 1.7% B.1% 2.3% 35.0% 2.2% (55%) 22% 17.2% 2.4% 33.8% 2.2% 13.3%
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Pension and Similar Obligations (continued}

Warwickshire County Council Pension Fund

Principal Actuarlal Assumptions (%)

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation

Discount rate for scheme liabilities
Inflation assumplion (CPY)

Commutation

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates,

2018

29
23
28
23

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today:
Males
Females

Retiring in 20 years:
Males
Females

Asset split (%0):

Equities

Property

Government bonds
Corporate bonds

Other

Cash

Total market value of assets

Fair Value of fund assets
Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Net defined benefit pension liability

Total Expenditure Recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities

Current sarvice cost (net of employee
contributions)

Adminsitration expenses

Financing cost

Interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset)

Pension Expense

2017

3.0
2.1
2.5

224 22.5
24.7 24.7
24.3 24.3
26.7 26.7

63 65

12 11

22 22

3 2
100.0  100.0
2,256 1,061

(3,702)  (3,643)

(1,448)  (1,682)
344 364

45 52
389 416
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For the year ended 31 August 2018

Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

Analysis of Pension Finance Income

Interest income on assels
Inderest cost on pension liabilities
Pansion finance income/ {costs)

Net movement on assets and liabilities

B/fwd bhalance 1 September 2017
Inherited on transfer/merger
Employer contribution

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest expense

Interest income on assets
Actuarial gains/(fosses)

Beflcit at 31 August 2018

Movement in the present value of defined
benefit obligations:

B/fwd balance 1 September 2017

Inherited on transfer/imerger
Current service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial (gain}/ loss
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018

Movement in the fair value of fund assets:

Bffwd balance 1 September 2017
Inherited on mergerftransfer
Interest on income
Administration expenses
Remeasurements gains/ {losses)
Employer contributions
Employee contributions

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018
Actual return on assets:
Experience gains and losses on assets

Amount
Percentage of assets

2018 2017
51 33
(98) (85)
(45) (52)
(1,682)  (2,118)
168 172
(344)  (364)
(96) (85)

51 33

457 678
(1,448) {1,682)
3643 3,836
344 364

96 85

48 59
(415)  (688)
(14) (13)
3,702 3643
1961 1,464
51 33

42 246
168 172

48 59
{14) {13)
2,258 1,981
93 279

42 246
1.9%  12.5%
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20 Pension and Similar Obligations {continued)

West Sussex Pensian Fund

The Globe White Meadows
Fastbrock Primary Primary Primary Total
Principal Actuarial Assumptions (%) 2018 2017 2018 - 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Rate of increase in salaries 3.1 3.1 3.0 31 3.1 3.1 3.1 31
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.4 25 23 25 2.4 2.5 24 2.5
Discount rate for scheme jiabilities 2.8 24 28 24 2.8 24 2.3 2.4
infiation assumption {CPI) 24 24 23 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4

Commutation
The current mortality assumptions include sufficient aliowance for future improvements in motality

rates.  The life ext en age B85 are:

Retiring today:

Males 236 2386 238 236 238 23.6 238 238
Females 250 250 250 25.0 25.0 280 25.0 25.0
Retiring in 20 years:

Maies 26.0 26.0 260  26.0 260 260 26.0 26.0
Females 27.8 27.8 27.8 27,8 278 278 278 278
Asset split {%}:

Equities 84.0 52.0 54.0 5240 54.0 52.0 54.0 52.0
Property a0 8.0 8.0 80 8.0 8.0 8.0 8,0
Government bonds 35.0 aran 35.0 370 5.0 37.0 5.0 are
Cash 3.0 3.0 3.0 34 30 3.0 3.0 3.0
Total market value of assets 1c0.0 1006 100.0 _ 100.0 100.0 1000 100.0 100.0
Fair Value of fund assefs 1,138 965 1,597 1,384 1,610 1,368 4,345 3,701
Present value of the defined benefit obligation (1.562) (1448 {1.959) 1,892} {1.699) (1,508) {6.520) (5,148)
Net defined benefit pension Habiiity (424) (479) (362) (528) {389) (440} {1,175)  (1.447)
Totz] Expendi R i it the: of

Financial Activities

Current sanvice cost (net of employee contributions) 179 158 206 182 282 225 867 575
Financing ¢oest - B
Interest on net defined benefit liabilityf{asset) 13 15 14 19 13 12 40 46
Total operating charge 152 173 220 211 295 237 707 521

Analysis of Pension Finance income

Interest income on assets 25 7 36 24 36 23 97 B4
Interest on pension fabifities 38 E2) {50) {42) {48} 35) {1970 {110)
Pension finance income/ {costs) {13) {15} {14) {18} {13} {12} (40) {486}
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20 Pensien and Similar Obligations (continued)

The Globe White Meadows

Eastbrook Primary Primary Primary Total
Net mevement on assets and liabilities 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Bifwd balance 1 September 2017 479 (G88) (528) (865} (440) (841) (1.447)  (2.082)
tnherited on transfer/merger - - - - .
Empioyer contribution a3 79 15 127 137 150 345 356
Current sepvice cost {178) {158} 206y (192) (282)  {225) 687 {575)
Interest expense {38) {32) 50} 43) {48) 35 {137y (110}
Interest income on assets 25 17 36 24 36 23 a7 64
Actuarial gains/(iosses) 154 301 27 425 208 188 634 910
Deficit at 31 August 2018 (424) [479) {382) (528) {389) (440} (1,175 (1,447)
Movement in the present valtie of defined benefit
obligations:
B/fwdg balance 1 September 2017 1,448 1,438 1,882 1,936 1808 182¢ 5,148 5,003
Inherited on ranstermerger - - - . .
Curent service cost 179 158 206 182 282 228 667 575
interest cost 38 3z S0 43 49 33 137 10
Employee contributions 22 2z 27 28 38 38 88 84
Actuarial Lesses / {Gains) 111 188 210 (302 (148) (7T [48%)  (S6T)
Benefits paic (15) a4} (6) (3) (30) 4o (a1 [t
At 31 August 2018 1,562 1448 1,858 1,892 1,889 1808 5.520 £,148
Mavement in the fair value of fund assets:
Bifwd balance 1 September 2017 Ge9 752 1,264 1,071 1,368 1,088 3,701 2811
Inherited on transfer/merger - - B - -
Interest on assets 25 17 36 24 36 23 o7 64
Remeasurements gains / (losses) 43 113 &1 118 61 m 165 5343
Empioyer contributions 92 78 115 127 137 150 345 386
Employes contributions 23 22 27 26 38 36 [:1:} 84
Benefits paid (18 (i4) ] 3 30 (40} {51 &7
At 31 August 2018 1,138 869 1,507 1.364 1,640 1,288 4,345 3,701
Actual returr: on assets: 68 130 a7 143 o7 134 262 407
History of experience gains and losses:
Experience gaing and {losses) on assets
Amount 43 113 61 119 61 111 165 243
Percentage of assets 38%  11.7% 3.8% B7% 2.8% BI% 3.8% 8.3%
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Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

London Borough of Bexley Pension Fund

Princlpal Actuarial Assumptions (%} 2018 2017

Rate of increase in salaries 36 3.7
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentinflation 2.2 2.2
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 28 2.4
Infiation assumption (CPI) 21 2.2

Commutation

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient alfowance for future improvements in mortafity rates.
The assumed life expectations on refirement age 65 are:

Retiring today:
Males 23.4 23.0
Females 26.1 26.0

Retising in 20 years:
Males 253 252
Females 28.4 28.3

Asset split (%):

Equities 40.7 60.1
Praperty 1.2 10.6
Other bonds 19.0 8.7
Cash 0.1 0.7
Other bonds 29.0 19.9
Total market value of assets 100.0 100.0
Fair Value of fund assets 1,025 855
Present vatue of the defined benefit obligation (3,537)  (1,489)
Net defined benefit pensicn liability {512) (634)

Total Expenditure Recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities
Operating cost

Current service cost (net of employee

contributions) 148 143

Admin expenses 3 3

Financing cost

interest on net definad benefit liabikly/{asset) 14 11

Pension expense : 165 157
2018 2017

Analysis of Pension Finance Income

Interest income on assels ‘ 22 15
Interest an pension liabilities {36) (28)
Pension finance costs {14) (1)
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Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

Net movement on assets and liabilities

Bifwd batance 1 September 2017 (634) (574)
Inherited on transfer/merger ’ -
Emptoyer cantribution 122 85
Current sarvice cost (148) (143)
Benefits paid -
Interest expense (38) {26)
Interest income on assels 22 15
Actuarial {losses} / gains 162 9
Deficit at 31 August 2018 {512) {634)

Movement in the present value of defined
benefit obligations:

f/fwd balance 1 September 2017 1,489 1,230
Inherited on transfer/merger -
Current sarvice cost 148 143
interast expense kil 26
Employee contribulions 24 22
Actuarial (gains)/ fosses (146) 92
Benefits paid (14) (24)
At 31 August 2018 1,637 1,489

Movement in the fair value of fund assets:

Blfwd balance 1 Seplamber 2017 858 656
Inherited on transfenmearger -
Interest on assets 22 15
Remeasurement gains/ (losses) 16 101
Employer contributions 122 85
Employee contributions 24 22
Benefits paid (14 {24)
At 31 August 2018 1,025 855
Actual return on assets: 38 116

History of experience gains and losses:
Experience gains and losses on assets

Amount 16 101
Percentage of assets 1.6% 11.8%
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20 Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

Buckinghamshire County Councll

Total
Principal Actuarial Assumptions (%) 2018 2017
Rate of increase in salaties 3.8 NIA
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inlation 23 N/A
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.7 N/A
Inflation assumption (CP1} 2.3 NIA
Commutation
The current mortality assumptions include sufficient
allowance for future impravements in motality rates,
The assumed life expactations on retirement age 65
are:
Reliring today:
Males 24,0 NIA
Females 26.1 NIA
Redtiring in 20 years:
Males 26.3 N/A
Females 28.5 N/A
Asset split (%):
Equities 52.0 N/A
Property 7.0 NiA
Government bonds 12.0 NIA
Corporate honds ) 12.¢ N/A
Qther 11.0 NIA
Cash 8.0 N/A
Total market value of assets 100.0 0.0
Fair Value of fund assels 33 -
Present value of the defined benefit obligation (49) -
Net defined henefit pension Bability (18) -
Total Expenditure Recognised in the Statement of
Financial Actlvitles
Current service cost {net of employee cantributions) 49
Financing cost
Interest on net defined benefit liability/{asset) -
Total oparating charge 49 -

Analysis of Penslon Finance Income
Interast income on assets - -

Interest on pension liabilities - -
Pension finance income/ (costs) - _
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20 Pension and Similar Obligations (continted)

Total
Net movement on assets and liabilities 2018 2017

B/fwd balance 1 Seplember 2017 - -
Inhesited an transfer/merger -
Emplayer contribution 25 -
Current service cost {49) -
Interest expense - -
Interest income on assels - -
Actuarial gainsi{losses} 7 -

Deficit at 31 August 2018 {16) -

Movement in the present value of defined benefit
obligations:

Bifwd balance 1 September 2017 - -
tnherited on transfer/merger ' -
Cument service cost 49 -
interest cost -
Employee contributions 7 -
Actuarial Losses f {Gains) {7) -
Benefits paid -

At 31 August 2018 49 T

Movement in the fair value of fund assets:

B/fwd batance 1 September 2017 -
Inheritad on transfer/merger

Interast on assets

Remeasurements gains / (fosses)

Employer contributions 26
Employee contributions 7
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018 33 -

Actual return on assels: - -
History of experience gains and losses:
Experience gains and (fosses) on assets

Amount - -
Percentage of assets 0.0% 0.0%
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20 Pension and Simitar Ohligations {continued)

London Barough of Waltham Penslon Forest Penslen Fund

Chagpel End Junior Woodslde Primary REAch2 Head
Academy Academy Office Totat

Principal Actuarial Assumptions (%) 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 207 2018 2017
Rate of increase in salaries 3.7 3.7 36 3.7 38 3.7 3.6 a7
Rate of increase for pensiens in paymentfinflation 23 2.2 2.2 22 2.2 22 22 2.2
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.9 2.5 2.8 2.4 28 2.4 2.8 24
Inflation assumptlion (CPI) 22 2.2 2.1 22 2.1 2.2 24 22
Committation
The current martality assumptions include sufficient allowance for fulure Improvements in motality rates. The assumed life
expectations on retirement age 65 are:
Retiring today:
Males 225 22.4 228 22.4 22.5 22,4 225 22.4
Females 255 25.4 255 254 255 25.4 255 254
Retiring in 20 years:
Males 247 24.6 24.7 248 247 24.6 24.7 2486
Females 278 27.7 27.9 227 279 27 279 277
Asset split {%):
Equities £6.0 63.0 66.0 83.0 66.0 83.0 66.0 63.0
Property 2.0 9.0 8.0 9.0 9.0 8.0 9.0 9.0
Other bonds 10.0 j2.0 100 12,0 10.0 12.0 0.0 12.0
Cash 3.0 6.0 3.0 6.0 3.0 6.0 3.0 6.0
Other 12.0 10.0 12.0 10.0 12,0 10.0 12.0 10.0
Total market value of assets 100.0 100.8 1060 100.0 100.0  100.0 1000 100.0
Fair Value of fund assats 436 333 3,147 2,344 2,608 1,477 6,189 4,154
Present value of the defined benefit obligation (502} {457} (5,500)  (5,209) (2,787) (1,880} 8,785 {7,546)
Nel defined benefit pension lability (66} {124) {2,353)  (2.865) {181) {403) (2,800)  (3,392)
Total Expenditure Recognised In the Statement of
Financla! Activities
Cursent service cost (ret of employee contibutions) 71 72 805 580 690 587 1,366 1,239
Admin costs 2 2 18 17 20 17 40 36
Financing cost - - -
Interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset) 3 11 63 45 3 {4) 69 52
Total aperating charge 76 85 686 842 713 600 1,475 1,327
Analtysls of Pension Finance Ingcome
Interast income an assets 9 4 63 46 47 23 119 73
Interest on pensian liabifities (12 {15) {126} {91} 50)  (19) (188) (128)
Pension financa income/ {costs) {3) (11} (63} (45) (3) 4 (69) {52}
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20 Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

Chapel End Juntor Waodside Primary REAch2 Head
Academy Academy Oftice Tota

Net movement on asasts and liabilities 2018 2047 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Bffwe baiance 1 Saptember 2017 (124} (655) (2,865)  {2,252) (403} (88) (3,302 {2,875
Inherited on transfar/merger - - - - -
Employer contribution &80 62 494 497 549 489 1,103 1,048
Current service cost (71) 72 (608) (580) {690}  (587) (1,368)  {1,239)
Interest expense (12) (15) {128} @1y 50y (19 (188) {125}
Interest income an assels @ 4 63 46 A7 23 119 73
Actuarial gains/losses) 72 452 686 (485) 366 {241} 1,124 {274)
Deficit at 31 August 2018 (66) {124) (2,353)  (2,865) (181) {403} (2,800) (3,382)
Movement In the present value of delined benefit
obligations:
Bifwd balance 1 September 2017 457 691 5,209 4,078 1,880 734 7,646 5,503
Inherited on transfer/merger - - - - -
Current service cost 71 72 G605 580 880 587 1,366 1,239
Interest cost 12 15 126 91 50 19 188 125
Employee centributions 12 12 108 104 143 129 260 245
Actuarial Losses  {Gains) (50 (325} (534) 460 (258) 287 842) 432
Benefits paid - (8} (11 {104) 282 114 2n 2
At 31 August 2018 502 457 5,500 5,209 2,787 1,880 8,789 7,546
Movement In the fair value of fund assets:
Bliwd balance 1 Saptember 2017 333 136 2,344 1,826 1,477 666 4,154 2,628
Inherited on transferimerger - . - - -
Interest on assets g 4 63 46 47 23 119 73
Remeasuremerts gains / (lossas) 22 127 1562 (25} 108 56 282 158
Emaloyar contribulions 60 82 494 497 549 489 1,103 1,048
Employae cantributions 12 12 108 104 143 129 260 245
Benefits paid " (8) {11} {104) 282 114 a7 2
At 3f August 2018 436 333 3,147 2,344 2808 1,477 6,189 4,154
Actual return on assets: 31 31 215 21 155 79 401 231
History of experience gains and losses:
Experience gains and {(losses) on assels
Amount 22 127 152 (25) 108 56 282 158
Percentage of assets 5.0% 38.1% 4.8%  (1.1%) 41%  3.8% 4.6% 3.8%
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Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

Shropshire County Council Pension Fund

Principal Actuarial Assumptions (%) 2018 2017

Rate of increase in salaries 3.7 3.7
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.2 2.2
Discount rate for scheme fiabilities 2.8 2.5
Inflation assumption (CPI) 23 22

Commutation

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for fulure
imprevements in mariality rates. The assumed life expactations on reftirement
age 65 are;

Retiring today:
hales 23.1 23.0
Females 26.3 26.2

Retiring in 20 years: .
Males 253 25.2
Females 286 285

Asset split (%):

Equities 50.8 512
Property 5.0 4.8
Other honds 22.3 23.5
Cash 2.4 47
Other honds 18,5 15.8
Tatal market value of assets 1000 100.0
Fair Value of fund assets 30 15
Present value of the defined benefit obligation {136) {118)
Net defined benefit pension liability {106) {103)

Total Expenditure Recognised in the Statement of
Financlal Activities

Operating cost

Current service cost (net of employes contributions) 33 22
Finaneing cost

Interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset) 3 1
Pension expense 36 23

2018 2017

Analysis of Penston Finance Income

Interest income on assets 1 1
Interest on pension liabilities (3 (2}
Pension finance costs (2) (1)

1M
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Pension and Similar Obllgations (continued}

Net movement on assets and liabilities

Bifwd bafance 1 September 2017
Inkerited on transferimerger
Empdayer contribution

Current service cost

Past senvice cost

Interest expense

Interest income on assels
Actuarial {losses} / gains

Deficit at 31 August 2018

Movement in the present value of defined benefit

obligations:

Bffwd nalance 1 September 2017
Inherited on transferimerger
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest expense

Employee contributions

Actuarial (gains)/ fosses

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2018

Movement in the fair value of fund assets:
B/fwd balance 1 September 2017

Inherited on transferimerger

Interest on assets

Remeasurement gains/ (losses)

Employer contributions

Employee contributions

Impact of past service

At 31 August 2018

Actual return on assets:
History of experience gains and losses:
Experience gains and fosses on assels

Amount
Percentage of assets

{103) 1)
8 5
(33) (22)
(3) (2
1 1
24 {14)
(106} {103)
18 108
33 22
3 2

6 4
(24) {(18)
135 118
15 35

1 1

- (30)

8 5

6 4
30 15

1 (29

- (30)

0.0%  (200.0%)
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Reconciliation of net incame / {expenditure) to net cash flew from operating 2018 2017
activities Totak Total
£000 2060
Net income / {expenditure) for the ceporting periad (as per the statement of financial (16,785) (8,922)
adlivities)
Adjusted for:
Oepraciation and impairment charges {nole 12) 18,577 8,256
Assets gifled on conversion {14,903} {9.569)
Capital grants from DfE and olher capital income {3,000} (4.303)
Intarest receivable (note 5) (X)) @n
Defined benefit pension schame net finance cost/ {income) 5,108 661
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less conlributions payable 473
{Increase) 7 decrease in stock (] 21
Decrease ! {increase} in deblors (280) {189)
Increase / (decrease) in creditors. 1,661 1,415
Lass on disposal of tangible fxed assels 5,620 11,292
Net cash pravided by / (used in) operating activities (65) {1,548)
Cashflow from financing activities 2018 2017
Total Total
£'000 £'900

Repayment of borowing

Cash Inflow from new borrowings 3,000 -
Net cash provided byl[used in} firancing activites 3,000 -
Capital Gommitments 2018 2017
£'000 £'900
Cantracled for, but not provided in the financial statements 2517
GCommitments under operating leases
AL August 2016 the total of the Trust's fulure minimum lease paymenls under non-canceltable operaling leases wers:
2018 2017
£'000 £1600
Amounts due within one year 186 14
Amounts due wilhin lwo and five years 542 1226
Amounts due afler five years 904 471
1,631 711
Retfated party ransactions
Owing 1o the nalure of the isalion's oparat| and the posilion of the Beard of Directors being drawn from local public and
private seclor organisations, transactfons may take place with isati in which may have an Inleresi. All transaclions

invelving such organisalions are conducted at amys-length and in dance with he o ions financial regulations and nomal
procurement pracedures. The following related parly transactions foak place in the period of the aseounts.

During the year the academy trusi entered inlo (he following fransactions with Reach Soulh Academy Trusl a company in which Sir
Sleve Lancashire is a trustes

~ Suppiies relaling to staff empioyed by REAch2 for Reach South amounted to £32,252 in the year, with a deblor balance of £28,593 at
1he year end.

~ Glive Rockingham a Sole Trader and Trustee of REAch2 provided services relating to Heallh & Safely amounting to £8,148, with a
credilor balance of £nfl at the year end.

in enlering inlo ihe iransaclions the trust has complied with the requiremsents of the Academies Finandial Handbook 2017,

Paost balance sheet events

On 1 Seplember 2018 three new primary schoofs joined the Trust:

- Henhurst Ridge Primary Academy, a new free schoel based In Staffordshice

- Newhall Primary Academy, a new (ree School presumplion, based in Harlow

- The Limes Primary Academy, a new fres schaol based in Lowestoft

Ad the time of signing the aceounts managemenl have not been sble to determine 1he value of funds ransiered
1o the Trusl relaling o these primary schools.

©n 1 Seplember 2018, one schoo! Minerva Academy closed and left the Trust.
Mambers Liability
£ach member of Ihe charitable cempany undertakes to corlribute to the assets of the company in the event of il being wound up while

nedshe is & member, or wilhin one year after hefshe ceases ta be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding F10 for
the debts and liabilities contracted before hefshe ceases to be a member.
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28 Conversion 1o an academy
During the year the below joined the Trust with all of their operations, assets and liabifities
heing transferred fo REAch2 Academy Trust from the retevant Local Authorities and legacy
academies for £nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that ks in substance a gift. The assets

and liabilittes transferred were valued at their fair values and recognised in the Balance Sheet
under the appropriate headings, with a corresponding net amount recognised as a ret gain in
the Statemant of Financial Aclivities as donations - transfer on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred
and an analysis of their recognition in the Statement of Financial Aclivities.

Academy Location Date of Conversion
Sumimerside Primary Academy Crossway tst September 2017
Net assets transferred: 2018
£'000
L.easehold land and buildings 14,903
Cash 115
Recognised income within the SOFA 15,018
LGPS pension deficit recognised as expenditure within the SOFA (565)
Total net assets acquired 14,453

Also during the year, a Free Schoal presumption Green Ridge Academy opened on 1st
September 2017 in Ayleshury, Buckinghamshire. It opened in a temporary building on the
school site befare moving to its permanent building on 1st September 2018, The lease for the
new building is due {o be signed after the year end. No assets or liahilities have heen included
in the Statement of Financial Activities.

29 Transfer out of existing academies leaving the academy trust

During the year the below academy left the Trust with all of their operations, assets and
liabilities being transferred to Platenous Trust

The fellowing table sets out the fair values of the idenfifiable assets and liabilities fransferred
and an analysis of their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Academy Location Date of leaving
Castiehill Academy Croydon 1st September 2017
Net assets transferred: 2018
: £'000
Leasehald land and buildings 9,194
Other tangible fixed assets 8
Cash 33
Recognised expenditure within the SOFA . 9,533
LGPS Pension Deficit {1,079}
Creditors due greater than 1 year {279}
Total net assets transterred 8,175
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REAch2 Academy Trust owns 100% of the issued ordinary share capital of Reach2 Ingpiration Limited, a
company incorporated in England and Wales. The subsidiary is engaged in the supply of services to
education. Hs financial year ends on 31 August 2018.

The accounts of the subsidiary da not justify consolidation, as Reach2 Inspiration Limited is not deemed to
he material to the organisation as a whole. The materiality of the trading company will he reviewied on an
annual basis, thus ensuring that the financial statements continue to be prepared using best accounting

practice.

Teaching School Trading Account

Direct iIncome
Other income

Other Income
Fundraising and other trading activities
Total Income

Expenditure

Direct Cosis
Direct siaff costs
Staff development
Other direct costs
Total direct costs

Other costs
Support staff costs
Depreciation
Technology cosis
Recruitment
Security

(Other support costs
Governance costs
Total other cosis
Total Expenditure

Transfer between funds excluding
depreciation

Surplus/(Delicit} from all sources

2018
Total
£'000

(=3

Teaching Scheol Balance as at 1 September 2017
Teaching School Baiance as at 31 August 2018

2018 2018
Total Total
£'000 £000
91
0
H
19
57
{76)
15
15
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2017 2017
Total Total
£000 £'000

<

oo o0 0Cc o o o

2017
Total
£'000



